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PROPOSED 2400-BEO PRISON
AT VACAVILLE
Key Advantages

the Proposed Design

1.

FAST CONSTRUCTION - Major structural elements can be manufactured prior
to construction on site.

2.

SIMPLE CONSTRUCTION - Inmate labor can be maximized in future
construction.

3.

FLEXIBILITY WITH PRE-CAST CEll ELEMENTS - Pre-cast cells can be arranged
into a variety of housing configurations.

4.

FLEXIBILITY WITH HOUSING SECURITY LEVEL - The prototype can be
constructed for levels I, II, or III and possibly level IV.

5.

FLEXIBILITY IN MANAGEMENT - Housing units can be divided into two, three
or six smaller dayrooms.

6.

SITE FLEXIBILITY - Housing units can be sited in a variety of configurations to accommodate different sites and the number of inmates per
facility.

7.

CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL FLEXIBILITY- Different functions are housed in
separate buildings, e.g. industry, administration and warehouses, which
allow each building to be constructed of the most cost effective material.

8.

ENERGY EFFICIENT - The housing units meet the Title 24 energy conservation idelines, and are projected to use less than 10 BTU's per square
foot
hour.

9.

COST EFFICI
e entire complex is estimated to cost less than
$45,000 per bed (construction costs) and less than $52,000 per bed
(project costs).

10. STAFF EFFICIENT HOUSING UNITS - Staff to inmate ratio: 3.6 to 1.

--Prepared by the Department of
Corrections
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CALIFORNIA STATE PRISON - VACAVILLE
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN
NOVEMBER 8, 1983
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OUTCOME OF COMMITTEE HEARING

RESOLUTION OF JOINT COMMITTEE ON PRISON CONSTRUCTION AND
OPERATIONS RELATIVE TO THF PROPOSED 1200 BED LEVEL III C01·1PLEX AT
VACAVILLE.

I.
Housing Units.
The committee approves the housing unit
module plans and requests that the department proceed to the
Public Works Board as soon as possible to secure release of
previously appropriated funds.
II.
Inmate Work Program. The committee requests resubmission of
the work program accompanied by supplemental information on
industry capitalization, product marketing, and staff training.
The committee further directs the department to work with
committee staff in flushing out this proposed program and to
bring it back to the committee as soon as feasible, preferably
thin the next 30 days.
III. Staffing Pattern. The committee requests resubmission of
the proposed staffing pattern with a detailed justification for
all positions in excess of the prescribed 4 to 1 staffing ratio.
The committee further directs the department to work with both
the committee staff and the Legislative Analyst to address
concerns raised relative to perimeter security, infirmary
operations, as well as staff savings from double celling.
IV. Timetab
The committee understands that substantial
construction work on the industry and vocational education
facili
s will have been completed by the time that the second
600 Level III housing units are occupied.

Room 4048, State Capitol, Sacramento, California
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The Joint Committee on Prison Construction and Operations will
hold a major hearing
THURSDAY, JANUARY

5

Room 3191, 8 a.m.
to act on the plans for the 2,400-bed expansion of the state prison
at Vacaville for Level 2 and 3 inmates; staffing and inmate work plans.
The particular significance of this hearing, beyond adoption of
the plans for the Vacaville expansion, is that the Department of
Corrections plans to use the Vacaville project as a model for
numerous other prison complexes proposed in the state, including
the future institution planned in Riverside County, the one in
Los Angeles County, etc.
The department indicates it hopes to reduce costs to the $50,000per-cell range in the Vacaville plan, making the prototype for
future construction a far cry money-wise from the $100,000-percell at Tehachapi, the original prototype prison designed several
years ago and now under construction.
Department spokesmen indicate that the tilt-up construction and
other economies planned at Vacaville may result in California
constructing the most economical prisons at a per-cell cost of
any now being built in the nation.
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EARl G TRANSCRIPT
DANIEL MCCARTHY:

Good morning.

As you know I'm Dan McCarthy,

Director of the Department of Corrections.
started.

I'd like to get things

First by giving a brief overview on where we are today

and hopefully where we are headed for tomorrow.

As I've indicated

to this committee before that the growth of the Department is continued in the same vein as it has been for the past three years.
But, it's still picking up at approximately 100 inmates a week.
CHAIRMAN ROBERT PRESLEY:
hear okay?

Excuse me a second.

Can everybody

Do you hear in the back?

MR. MCCARTHY:

Currently our facilities are operating at about

148-149 percent of designed capacity.

Our total count, as of this

morning, is approaching the 38,000 level.

Our institutions are

actually designed to handle 25,000 inmates, so it's quite evident
that we are in a very critical state.

I feel that the year 1984

probably is going to be the most critical year in the whole history
of the Department of Corrections.

Fortunately, the Legislature,

through some of the bills that were passed -- SB 422 and a couple
of the other bills -- we have started to accelerate our building
program.

At the CMC West facility, we are working on that.

We

indicated that we'd have 150 inmates in that unit by January of
this year.

We have 150 inmates in that facility already.

By

March we'll have an additional 300, and then later in the year,
approximately July or August, we'll have an additional 450 inmates
in that facility for a total of 900 inmates, and that was all brought
about by SB 422.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

How many beds do you project to have on line

and ready, say at the end of the calendar year, at the end of 1984?
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MR. MCCARTHY:
in modular units.

We'll have 900 at CMC West, we'll have 1,000 beds
We have 1,800 of the 2,400 beds in Vacaville.

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
MR. MCCARTHY:

About 37 or 38 hundred.

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
MR. MCCARTHY:

What does that total out to during 1984?

So let's say, to

be optimistic, about 4,000.

Well, a little over 4,000, counting the first units

corning on line at Ione.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

CDC should have an additional 4,000 beds by

the end of 1984?
MR. MCCARTHY:

In 1985 there will be quite a few new prisons.

1985 will be our big construction year.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
1984.

I'm just talking about this critical year of

You bring on line an additional 4,000 beds, and we are, what,

13,000 over in population?
MR. MCCARTHY:

13,000 and up.

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

So we'd still be 9,000 over?

MR. MCCARTHY:

You also have to take into consideration continuing

population growth.

4,000 beds during 1984 will just about keep up with

our current growth.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

If you continued about 100 a week, you just

about run in place.
MR. MCCARTHY:

Yes, because we've been running almost 5,000 a

year increase during the last two or three years.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

So we gained 4,000 beds in 1984 and you'll

probably have more prisoners than that or about the same.
MR. MCCARTHY:

Yes, and some of these beds will be double-celled.

It will be about a break-even year.

We won't be losing ground, as

we have been doing in the last three years.
-2-

We'll be holding our own,

and '85 is really

, and

tide and start not only
course,

's when we should turn

up but getting ahead of it.

main thing we'll be

facility, which to me is the

scuss

Of

today is the Vacaville

to our whole building program.

I'm very enthused about the approach we're taking.

Rightfully so,

the Department has been criticized in the past for some of our
planning failures and inability to get

titutions on line.

How-

ever, I feel confident that we now have everything put together, and
we're in the position that we could really demonstrate to some of
our critics that we are able to construct new facilities and get
them on line as we have indicated.

I know in the past we have made

promises and indicated various things.

And we have failed them.

I

personally don't feel that we are going to do that in this particular
set of circumstances.

We are committed to meet all the time con-

straints that we have placed on ourselves.

We have purposely made

them tight, because again, as I've just indicated with a growing
population right now, we're probably at almost the maximum number of
people that we can handle.

We're especially impacted at the level

three and level four areas, which are close maximum custody cells.
The court ordered that San Quentin be single-celled and this ruling
is being carr

over into Folsom.

That ruling, for most purposes,

has pretty well shut down double-celling at those two particular
facilities.

Our level three facilities are, right now, operating

around 180 percent above design capacity so we're almost at the
breaking po

We have indicated for Vacaville that the first 600

level three bed units will come on line in May of this year, which
people feel is on the optimistic s

I really don't feel so.

What

I'd like to do is reply to the last set of questions which were sent
-3-

to us from your committee.

I'd like to review them.

And, I think,

give you a little sense of feeling where we're going and how we feel
about that.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

Before you do that, Mr. McCarthy, vou said

something about the result of the court cases.

I thought you said

they practically shut down those institutions.
MR. MCCARTHY:

We can't increase the population at either one of

those institutions right now.

And it could be permanent within the

next few months, if the decisions go against us.

For instance, right

now the Toussaint case says that we can't double-cell in segregation
and this applies to four of our institutions -- at Folsom, San Quentin,
Soledad and DVI.

We have cut back the double-celling at San Quentin

in our lock-up unit.

However, at Folsom, there's probably approximately

190 inmates double-celled in our lock-up unit.
it's approximately the same amount.

At DVI and at Soledad

So we're talking about close to

600 inmates right there who are double-celled in our lock-up units
that could be affected by the Toussaint case.

If they say we have to

get out of double-celling tomorrow, we would have to find places for
them.

I know the Wilson decision goes as far as saying the general

populations at San Quentin cannot be double-celled.

We are pretty

well in conformance with that order, but now they're trying to move
it into Folsom.

And if they move that particular case into Folsom

we probably have 1,200 to 1,300 people double-celled at Folsom.

So

that would be another 1,200 or 1,300 level fours that we'd have supposedly to find places to go.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
MR. MCCARTHY:
fours.

So you could have up to 1,800 level fours?

Well, we're talking probably 1,800 to 2,000 level

If both those decisions go against us, and at that time, you
-4-

know, I've given it a
prisons.

of thought and I've looked at our level

That's what the court

sted that we do.

I would have to move a lot
prisons.

That is, I would

cases into level three

We just don't have the p

s to go, and what I need is the

breathing room to get new institutions on line.

If those cases go a-

gainst us, and they say we're going to have to do it immediately, I
guess I'm going to wind up in jail.

Because I know there is no place

to move these people.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
MR. MCCARTHY:

There's no room for you.

[Laughter.)

But that's about where we're at today.

It's un-

fortunate.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
with this other 2,000.
MR. MCCARTHY:

So you don't know what you're going to do then
When are these cases going to be decided.

One is in trial right now, and probably the dec

sion will be out in the next week or two and that's the Toussaint case.
RMAN PRESLEY:

All right.

cases go against the state.
MR. MCCARTHY:

That's.

body, working on this.

Let's assume the worst, that the

What do you do?
.I've honestly got my staff, and every-

We have, to a certain extent, moved some of

the people, we call light level fours, to level three prisons, and
light level threes to level twos.

And, we've played these kind of

games, and you know, again, foremost in my mind is protection of
society.

And if they tell me I have to move those 2,000 level fours

out of San Quentin and Folsom and put them in less secure institutions,
you know, I would have to refuse.

And consequently, I'd probably be

held in contempt of court, because I have no place to put them at this
time.

If they give me a year to 18 months, hopefully, at that time

we'll be

the position that we can go along with the edict of the
-5-

court.

But as it stands today, we could not comply.

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

Well, if the court order says take the level

fours and put them in level three institutions, that's what you say
you would see as a threat to society.
MR. MCCARTHY:

Right.

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

And even if you were agreeable to do that, the

space isn't available in the level three facilities.
MR. MCCARTHY:

No.

Absolutely.

You know, the only recourse before

going to jail, we would appeal it and ask for a stay.
be our legal maneuver.

And that would

But, you know, I don't know how long this

would be or if we would be granted the stay.
has a lot of if's to it.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

Is it?

But.

.

It's all, you know, it

.these are really, critical times.

Then, assuming the best case situation, and

the court case is going the other way, then what's happening is that
you just about hold your own this year.
MR. MCCARTHY:

That's what I'm hoping to do.

In July of 1985 our

first level four institution at Tehachapi will come on line.

We are

also hoping, again with our new prototypical design and ''fast track"
construction, that we'll get to Ione and start getting some beds in
there.

Hopefully, we could get it also on line approximately in the

early part of '85.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

Okay, I guess I interrupted you.

I think you're

ready to get into the questions that have been previously submitted.
MR. MCCARTHY:

Okay.

The first question was if our projected

costs, scheduled completion dates, and work training program proposals
are guaranteed by California Department of Corrections' officials.
Well, the guarantee would have to come from me.

Again, I've been in

the business now going on 35 years and been an administrator for 20
-6-

some odd of those 35 years.

And my phi

sophy, and which is also

Department's philosophy, is that the work programs at our facilities
are just as

as any security measure that we may have.

know inmate idleness in our inst
acting out, and I

I

ions contribute to unrest and

1 strongly that we have to provide these things

at all our new facilities.

In fact, I am not overly enthused right

now about our current status.

We have approximately 28,000 inmates

right now who are available for assignment in our current facilities,
and we have places for about 24,000 of them.

So we have that on our

problem list already, and I would much prefer, that, even at our
current institutions that we have total programs for all of the inmates
involved.

As far as the cost and the completion dates are concerned,

again from all my study of this and review with our architectural and
construction people, I feel that we can reach these deadlines.

And

we'll have these institutions on line at the cost that we have indicated.
We've worked very hard on the cost factor.

As you know, Tehachapi,

also new Folsom, they were talking $89,000 plus for beds.

We're en-

deavoring to bring this cost down to a much more realistic cost and
we're down to about $50,000 now.

So we feel that we can produce new

housing at this acceptable cost.

We have worked, again very hard, in

reading the mandates that your committee has put on us.
felt, pretty well met them all.

We have, I

We have some problems in the staff,

the inmate ratio, that we may not be able to get to the 4.1 as indicated.

But, again, we will be talking about that.

I have personally

gone over our staffing patterns, and, feel that we're probably getting
about as close as we're going to get to the four to one level, which
is about 3.6 to 1, rather than the 4 to 1 that your committee has

-7-

indicated.

Going on to the second question:

What are the advantages

and the disadvantages of the precast construction methods as compared
to the onsite pour and tiltup construction techniques.

Well, actually

what we'll use is a combination of the tiltup and the prefab techniques
in building.

The advantage

of this is it•s fast construction.

Major

structural elements can be manufactured prior to construction onsite.
It's very simple construction, which will bring down our costs.

We're

planning to use inmate labor on the prefab units and the pouring of the
concrete and things like that.

That could be done at one of our facil-

ities and then the precast units trucked to other areas where we're
building.
necessary.

Or we can even set up onsite construction with them, if
The flexibility with precast cell elements is that the

cells can be set up in various configurations.

The flexibility, which

I think is very important, is that this prototypical design will be
exactly the same design that we will be using at all our level one,
two, and three facilities.

We're also looking at this same design

for our level four facilities, and we feel that it can be modified to
also deal with the level four facilities.
vantage.

There is a flexibility ad-

The designs are on the wall there, you can see its a 270

degree unit that can be cut off into thirds or halves, if we want to
have a small unit and to use part of it for a lock-up unit.
put one of those walls in for approximately $9,000.

We could

And if we want to

make it a protective housing unit, we can do that with it.

There are

all kinds of management techniques that can be employed in the use of
this type of construction.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

Do you think you have those as compact as

possible?

-8-

MR. MCCARTHY:
we need.

I bel

We could cut

the walls

a hundred beds is about as compact as
, you know.
cut

there.

unit

in that wall, I

in, if you
supervis

now,

In fact the initial design had
a 30-man unit.

l that you need more staff for

the observation post in the middle, one

officer in the observation post can keep his eye on the floor officer.
If you went into a
keep

ion of each un

s eye on that one off

, one officer up there couldn't

You'd have to have additional officers

in the other un
ASSEMBLYMAN BYRON SHER:
I looked at the existing

Mr. McCarthy, one thing that bothers me--

ison at that site---a level three institution

(Vacaville) right next door to where this one is going to be has 3,000
inmates and only 8 gun towers.

There is a difference in site compact-

ness, and I agree that the facility should be divided.
MR. MCCARTHY:

It's the same thing that we got into up 1n Folsom.

It's the amount of acreage and buildings that you're covering that
s the amount of gun towers around it.
gun towers are about 700

In new Folsom, the

These are approximately the same

distances as what we're talking about in the new Vacaville prison.
The level two

stitution, you know, I really don't agree with it.

But I knew that we'd have problems with towers.
two, we've cut some of the towers out.
in the level two facili
go

And around the level

So the distance between towers

which is the second two 600-man units, we're

to be about 1,400 feet between those towers,

Which to me is

much too far.

However, based on classif

type of

in there, level twos, I think we would have the proper

surveilance and things of that nature.

-9-

ion and putting the right

ASSEMBLYMAN SHER:

Mr. McCarthy, first let me say, in reference

to your introductory remarks, that I think the Department has responded
well to some of the goals and objectives that this committee laid out
in terms of the cost of the new un

s at Vacaville.

The plans show

that you are going to come in near the $50,000 per cell goal.

And, I

must say, I think this committee had a lot to do with that by forcing
the redesign of new Folsom and also the Vacaville plans.

I think we're

saving some $300 million at that figure, as against the original figures
based on the Tehachapi model.
MR. MCCARTHY:

That's absolutely correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN SHER:

And, in fact, Mr. Chairman, we've prepared a

little tabulation showing the $50,000 per cell figure and projecting
it to Folsom, San Diego, Riverside, and hopefully Los Angeles, showing
those $300 million savings to the State.

(Several people talking.]

So, I think that, far from being counter-productive, this type of legislative oversight has really been vital in ensuring that these plans are
cost effective, and I'm pleased with the response of the Department in
trying to come in at these figures.
In your answer to the second question about tiltup construction
versus precast, there are the two options.

Of course, the advantage

of precast construction means that at Vacaville or elsewhere you could
have inmate labor used in a prison industry that would produce these
units and send them out to other parts of the state, and really kind
of kill two birds with one stone.

The disadvantage, of course, is

the cost of hauling these very heavy units from a fixed site to the
new site.

The option is the pouring and tiltup at each of the sites

as they are built.

And I wasn't sure I understood your answer to the

one versus the other---what you propose to do, whether it is possible
to use these precast modules.
-10-

MR. MCCARTHY:
ll

the til

use some of i
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
up

.

, you know, on site construction, we

However,

Isn't

poss

could not use inmate labor.
le to have some kind of expertise

a crew that can go

MR. MCCARTHY:

This is one of the things we are looking at for the

work crews at Vacaville.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

We do.
But, I mean, you could actually take those in-

mates and use them to work on site at different locations to do the
tiltup construction?
MR. MCCARTHY:

Yeah.

Right.

DENNIS DUNNE:

Dennis Dunne, Department of Corrections, Mr. Vaughn,

from Rosser-Kitchel, says there is f

st of all the precast, getting

it built off site and using it for the first units, because of speed
and the need to get the beds on 1

Then, as we go into the next

600 or 1,200 beds, we have some options.

We can have the precaster

develop an on site casting plan -- maybe with a batch plan -- and then,
as we f

ish the job, the Prison Industry Authority takes over and

starts

panels and stockpiling them for other facilit
plan

and the precast plan -- are not real cheap, so

easy to go on s

everywhere.

easy panels on

s

s.

The
's not

With prison labor doing essentially

the cost of transportation -- at least if

you're talking about Northern California -- is probably not a large
marginal

se over on s

SENATOR PRESLEY:
labor

tiltup construction.

So you do see great potential then for using

the construction of these new facilities?

DUNNE, MCCARTHY, VAUGHN:
SENATOR ED DAVIS:
they put a

of cement

Absolutely.

Hopefully, when they do that, they make sure
with the sand.

MR. MCCARTHY:

We p

SENATOR DAVIS:
indicated you th

My quest

, Senator.
is back to your staffing ratio.

as close as you

perimeter security?
MR. MCCARTHY:

to do

come is 3.6.

Because

in

That's right.

You

Does that include

ial figures you didn't do that.

We didn't put it there, and again,

it comes down to what the legislative intent was when you wrote the
legislation for, I believe, Tehachapi it indicated in that legislation
that the outside security towers were not going to be included in the
staff/inmate ratio.

You see, that is why we excluded them in this

particular instance.
Does the figure 3.6 exclude perimeter security?

SENATOR DAVIS:
MR. MCCARTHY:

Exclude perimeter security?

Yes, sir.

I wasn't here when they adopted the criteria.

SENATOR DAVIS:

But

I think what you want is how many state employees it's going to take to
sustain the prisoner.
MR. MCCARTHY:
SENATOR DAVIS:

I'm the same as you.
Meanwhile, exterior security is overhead security.

Is overhead of the
MR. MCCARTHY:

luded in that staffing ratio?
Right.

Normally, you know, in all times past, and

again in my 35 years of experience, we've always approached it that way.
When this came up in this particular instance, I also questioned it
initially.

And they showed me the legislation and said it was up to us

to interpret what legislative intent was.
ASSEMBLYMAN SHER:

We went in that direction.

Mr. Chairman, I might mention that that com-

parison of a 4 to 1 ratio is with the Men's Colony at San Luis Obispo.
So I'm going to suggest, from my talk with people from the Department
yesterday, that the proposal for new Vacaville, as far as the staffing
ratio, be withdrawn and be resubmitted to see if we can't bring this
-12-

the 4 to 1 rat

more in 1

f

that we've mandated for

prison at San Diego.
MR. MCCARTHY:

We don t have

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

problem with that, Assemblyman

Mr. Alatorre.

ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

Can you, maybe, give us your reasoning as

to why you have the roughly, say, 3.5 or thereabouts to 1 ratio at
Vacaville.
MR. MCCARTHY:

Is that at Vacaville?

ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

Yeah.

posal you are talking about, 3.5.

In other words, where your new proWhat was the rationale for having

this 3.5?
MR. MCCARTHY:

Based on, aga

, security needs, full 100 percent

programming as far as the inmates are concerned.

Again, the wishes of

Legislature for each one of these 1,200 man, separate institution,
where you get into additional gymnasiums, additional clinics, additional
two of al

of these things down the line.

That all has an impact on

what the staffing ratio is.
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:
to

you have it at say 3.3 to 1 staffing ratio?
MR. MCCARTHY:

of the
ational

stitut

The basic rationale is what we feel what the needs

sign.

l staff

keep

design and the oper-

are, based on the construct

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

med

That would basically be your rationale as

s profess

Mr. McCarthy, isn't it true that there are some
for example,
ls

medical.

You are planning 30

but your facility has capability of only

prisoners there no more than 72 hours.

-13-

And then you have to

take them out.

Would

MR. MCCARTHY:

be some savings for example . . . .
What we

down to is the standards that the

ACA puts down, like for 500 inmates we have one doctor.

When you get

into two 1,200-bed facilities, where you are operating two clinics, one
in each facil

, a 500 to 1 ratio is about where we're at now.

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

Isn't

possible on the industry managers to

use thosepartly as custodial, too?

There are some potentials for

[Inaudible---several people speaking.]
MR. MCCARTHY:

We have agreed with your motion that we table

this staff to inmate ratio.

And our staff will sit down with your

staff and we'll try to hammer out more acceptable levels.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

Mr. Alatorre.

ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:
of the concerns I have.

Let me express to you, Mr. McCarthy, one

You know everybody is concerned about money,

and that's all fine, right.

But I'll tell you what I'm concerned about

is what I have seen in the years I have been involved in corrections.
What I have seen at many of these institutions is that in the process
you know where operations continue while we're in the process of constructing new prisons and the like and we're trying to save money.
Now that's fine in terms of construction and the like.
I have is ongoing programs.
the facilities.

The concern

The question of adequate medical care at

The question of providing programs for those inmates

who qualify for those programs, making sure

that~

had some kind of a

decent work program and work incentive plan and the like.

And while

many of the members are concerned with money, I'm concerned about
money.

But I am not so concerned about money when it comes down to

the question of working through the disadvantaged inmates, providing
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1 care.
st

about

st cr

Because one of the b
s

s

of not having enough

s

or profess

Not

al personnel.

What's the

fact, there is no medical care to be

1 care when,

concerns that I have.

Those are some of
we have to work and

Yes, I think

towards saving money, but not at the

the

extent of

doctors.

confinement is that

on of
you

isms histor-

of having decent medical care and

1 for those things, as well as making sure that

having

work incentive program is successful and it's just not a sham.
MR. MCCARTHY:
to do in

with you and that's what we attempted

I

proposal.

s

, Mr. McCarthy, I think we better get back

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

stions and move through them.

to

MR. MCCARTHY:

Okay.

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
MR. MCCARTHY:
des

at Ione

I guess we're on two or three?

Three, which I've already alluded to that the

construct

ison complexes authorized for construction

Avenal, Adelanto, San Diego, Riverside and Los Angeles.

answer is, yes, except
on the
design.

sed for the Vacaville project serve

ans

other

as a

Fine.

That

Los

les.

The

But we also feel that, de-

ite we get in Los Angeles, we may have a high-rise
s, if it's a metropolitan site, where there is not too

much acreage, we

ght have to go up.

the s

other areas, where we get adequate acreage, we will

build s

lar to

1

We feel that

s

11 depend on the size of

s particular design lends

self, even if we do have to double-stack them.
do so.
-1 -

We will be able to

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
(high rise)

What would it be if they want a stack-up

Los Angeles?

Is that siting problem progressing

satisfactorily?
MR. MCCARTHY:

It's progress

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

I'll tell you, I know there's a lot of people

here in this Legislature, and I'm one of them, who are very concerned
about building prisons in all these other counties all over this
state.

And Los Angeles attempting to get away from it, if you want

to put it that way.

So, what I'm saying is 1 put the pressure on down

there.
MR. MCCARTHY:

We've been trying . . . . our goal is to have one

there as soon as possible.

Again, once we iron out this site, we're

going to . • . .
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

It's a very large county, and I don't see

[Inaudible---both speaking again.]
MR. MCCARTHY:

It's the largest and the biggest number of our

commitments come from that particular area.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

What percentage of the inmates come from

Los Angeles County?
MR. MCCARTHY:

Well, you get into L.A. and Orange Counties,

about 50 to 60, around there.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
MR. MCCARTHY:

Okay, if we can get back to the questions.

Okay.

Has the Prison Industries Authority and

its new general manager developed markets, start up funding proposals
and amoriti

methods for the production-based work programs for

the new Vacaville prison?

This they have done and they are doing.

They are mainly looking at the state and county markets, such as
feeding,

, prison construction and servicing of these parti-
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cular areas.

Also, the Prison Indu
st

new
0
lat

ca

s

reserves
1983.

s to be granted by the Pool Money

i

scussed this with
11 be

to me that
as soon as

I

manager and he has indicated

tt

these requests to the Legislature

ss

ASSEMBLYMAN SHER:

You know, the work programs are important to

something we've questioned here before.

all of us
is new

ng the 30
s of this

on all

clock -- we have 30 days to act
an.

ng for these

detail

of it.

any market for

son

there's enough
stries that you

s and parts repaired,

There are no indications of whether you have

s or have
ta

t

1 if

But, like the staff ratio, I think

s is de

and they have no problem
at this t

more

s,

How do you want to go forward

today?

can

surveys for these
lding.

of

too, is not essential at this

be

I don't bel

about the vehicle repa

We

one

I think that

lle work proposal is the weakest part of the

presentat

ye

Also, the legis-

upon appropriations by the Legislature.

Investment

it wou

under pro-

Sta

0

20

project.

ity intends to fund

I

talked to some of your
that.

If that also

and resubmitted when we get some

whether you re going to have customers for
s that you are going to have in the industry
lle.

MR.
son

Mr.

, as a matter of fact, our plan for this

sons downstream are that if, when we submit the
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preliminary drawings for

vocational industrial complex which

would come over later, would be the kind of final package where we
have more detail.
ASSEMBLYMAN SHER:

problem we've run into before though

because obviously you are anxious and we are anxious that you go
ahead with the physical structures, and that'd be easy to prove.
But when you submit these plans, you also submit other proposals
on the basis of inadequate information for the staffing ratio and
also the work program.

So, I'm suggesting that these be resubmitted.

DENNIS DUNNE:

Okay, we will resubmit.

MR. MCCARTHY:

Yes, we are going to resubmit it.

And also I'll

have more information from the Chairman of the Prison Industries
Board.

At our last meeting, we authorized two consultant firms to

do some of these studies you are talking about so that we'll have.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

So we'll stop the 30-day clock running on

the approval of the work program and that will be resubmitted?
MR. MCCARTHY:

Yes, we'll have no problem.

ASSEMBLYMAN STIRLING:

Mr. McCarthy, on the Prison Industry Board,

the staff we're having trouble getting approval from the Department of
Finance to capitalize on some of the projects that you had decided to
bring on line.

What is the current status of that approval, and has

the barrier been removed yet?
DAVID CRAIG:

Mr. Stirling, my name is David Craig, and I'm the

General Manager of the Prison Industry Authority.
time, that is still being negotiated.

At this point of

We have requested an interpre-

tation from representatives of the Attorney General's office as to
whether or not we do, in fact, have the authority to spend monies
without going through finance.
~18-

ASSEMBLYMAN STIRLING:

s

Mr.

sure and

On that
me sure

That is corre

G

icular issue, we also have

STIRLING:

order to

' s

Mr.

, if both Chairmen have the

Le
is cou

I

member of

wh

Counsel and the Attorney

be
wou

il
al

11.

s that are more

of state

the k

s and

s of

the

ions.

So the need
The intent of

slature, was to facilitate that and the

of
1

ise-oriented, and not

are non-production.

avail

is for

Governor intended when they

Basically, the issue is the timely availability
str

of

a call from a fellow
the industry to move on with

slature and, indeed,

s

talize the pro-

prisoners.

It's been hung up on interpretation.

the administration's understanding is, if the AG
Counsel will say

's

Mr. Sher and I

, they

s

se

11 allow

ions out.

to go on.
So, I solicit

n that
PRESLEY:

Has a

~~~--------------

MR

Yes, s
PRESLEY:

for an opinion?

has.
We'll follow up on that.

~-----------------

ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:
new

st been

How much money has been included in the

work program expansion?
The new

t will be
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to the Legislature.

MR. MCCARTHY:

There will be money included in the Governor's

budget.
ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:
MR. MCCARTHY:

Significant?

That will be in the Governor's budget.

ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:
MR. MCCARTHY:

prison work program?

Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:
MR. MCCARTHY:

To

But you recommend it?

Significant in.

I don't know what's significant . . . .

ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:

We don't want to get off the track because

we're going to have trouble getting through here.

But my latest

figures were something like 60 percent of the prisoners are working.
And I'm not hard on you, because when we passed our prison work programs there was no money in it.

Now, apparently, we're going to be

talking about periods where we have sufficient money to expand worthwhile programs.

I'd like to make sure that yours is one of them.

MR. MCCARTHY:

I would really like to see this also, because we

do know we are employing more than 60 percent though, as they indicated.

We have about 28,000 inmates who are available for assignments

in our current institutions now, and we have about 4,000 of those who
are without assignments.

And I would like to see additional programs

brought aboard to put all of these people into work-incentive programs.
ASSEMBLYMAN STIRLING:
The legislat

I'm not sure I follow Mr. Baker's question.

that Mr. Sher and I carried allowed you unlimited

ability to borrow from pool-monied investment accounts.

So why is

there a question of general fund appropriation?
MR. CRAIG:

Excuse me, Mr. Stirling.

understanding here
McCarthy

I think there may be a mis-

terms of prison work programs.

I think Director

been referring to an overall program and your question is
-20-

more

to
se,

the Prison Industry Authority.

s

the

mandate

f

our

lves

-~~------------------emp

ng

and profitable due

We are authorized to fund those

The other part is whether the way Cor-

soners directly to do work for Corrections.

the dif
MR

cost~effective

Pool Money Investment Board . .

STIRLING:

rect

that of the Director, in that

that we offer must be

to the nature of our revo

The Authority,

Is

?

CRAIG:

That is correct.

[Inaudible---several people speak-

ing.]
ASSEMBLYMAN STIRLING:
Budget and
the

supervision and employment is a mandated expense for

?

ison indu
MR. CRAIG:

That is correct, sir.

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

Well, I would hope that whatever opinions

move this right along.

are

ALATORRE:
----------------------dollars for

is program.

that

rect
•

Do you feel in your background in Cor-

is enough money to do the job as far as work

• • ?

MR. MCCARTHY:
11 be.

I know it's really difficult for you.

X amount of dollars, we'll put X amount of

The Governor has

Right now I'm not aware of what the final amount

ble---several people speaking.]

ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
Yes,
is re

Would it be reflected in the Governor's

How about somebody else, anybody in the

Mr. Gomez.
Assemblyman Alatorre, I think the administration

at the issue.

I do not think you'll see significant
-21-

increases
this time.

Governor's

in

We have quer

their

area of work programs at

i

what they believe

are in area of work programs.

sidering, probably, the financ
process

Spr

concerned about.
tions.

of 1984.

We will be con-

of these programs in the May revise
It is an issue that the Director is

He has given specific orders to me and the institu-

We're out and will be canvassing and looking in detail to

see if there is a further need for staff.

Given that the overcrowding

of the institutions and the difficulty in getting everybody to work
in that overcrowding capacity, and I think, we have to understand the
difference between getting everybody to work in normal capacity vs.
an overcrowded capacity.
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

Now, the question that I have for you,

the point I just wanted to make, Mr. Gomez, is that, I guess, what
you're saying is that when the Budget comes out in --when the
Governor submits his Budget to the Legislature -- there is not going
to be any real significant increase in money to deal with the whole
question of work in the prison.

But that sometime between now and

the end of the budgetary process, when Ways and Means Committee is
looking at it, that the Governor will have a position that relates
to that.
MR. GOMEZ:

I think we've been asked to take a look at it since

there's some new direction in the Department.
We have some new staff.
they want some

We have a new director.

There has been some direction given to areas

fie focus on.

And, I think that's what you'll

see in terms of the administration looking at it during the Budget
process.
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At what po

as

to

at

re

s to

MR. GOMEZ:
an answer

ast some

as to

during this process are we
the Governor is headed

s issue?
think that

I

April, before April, you would have

stration intends to come forward with any sig-

f the

funding for the work program.

s

It would be in

would give plenty of time for both Ways and Means and
to review those packages in preparation for the Budget.

Senate

SHER:

~~~~-----------

Mr. Chairman, I want to ask Mr. Craig.

He

the money for prison industry comes out of a revolving fund.
lle, the new Vacaville proposals for the work pro-

We

such things as t

gram

the

enough money

s vehicle repair shop.

Is there

son industry revolving fund to put into place
sals in connection with new Vacaville?

se

It's

to provide the work opportunities for the inmates at new
such things as the equipment for this vehicle

Mr.

MR

, we have the capability to use existing

we can borrow from a pooled money investment fund and from
sources such as banks, which we have negotiated with to find
£inane
a cash pos

We are
equ
new Vac

would be available, if necessary.
ion that will allow us to purchase

necessary to get these operations off the ground at
lle on a timely basis.

ASSEMBLYMAN SHER:

As soon as they are ready, so that we can put

s to work as soon as they are placed there?
MR. CRAIG:

Absolutely, Assemblyman, we are in some cases ready
-23-

to put them to work earl

ion, we

In

s and prior to the
on line.

as

concrete program which

st 600 beds are occupied.

11

rest of the

as quick

The precast

over after the f

we will be
this

r.

's

our intent to do this

ss

ASSEMBLYMAN SHER:

That s encouraging.

We'll be looking for

those results.
MR. MCCARTHY:

Quest

Number 5 is, will the Work/Training

based program developed at the new Vacaville prison serve as a model
for other new prisons proposed by the Department of Corrections?
Again, as we have indicated, the answer is definitely, yes.
work with correctional

str

We will

s, especially in this particular area.

Question Number 6 is back to the staff ratio:

How close will

the staff ratio for new Vacaville approach the 4 to 1 mandate?

And

we have, you know, tabled that, and we'll be working with your committee on this concern.

Question Number 7 is another area we touched

firmary and the medical staff.

upon, the

And, again, we're looking

at that and seeing if there are any changes or modifications, maybe
there.

Question Number 8 is another area we talked briefly about.

It says here, is it necessary that the new Vacaville prison have a
total of 18 Guard Towers, as proposed in the planning date submitted
on December 13, 1983?

This goes

with the staff ratio.

However, I would like to point out that actually it isn't 18
towers.

It's been cut down to 15 towers.

them are des

as what we call full-time towers that are operated

7 days a week, 24 hours a day.
designated as
8 hours a

Of these 15 towers, 8 of

Five of these towers, or four, are

working during the day shift, five days a week,
And, if you look at the diagram up there on the wall,
-24-

from the housing un

upper
areas.
when

What we propose to do is dur
, we'll

s

lar area.

are our industrial areas and

the addit

But, in the even

the day time,

1 towers out in that

s, the inmates will leave that

area and come back within the security area.
do away

manning those towers.

So, we can

Additionally, there are three

towers that operate five days a week, on a 16-hour a day basis.
on

and Sundays they'll be on a 24-hour day basis.

and a

the housing unit

And

So that,

itself I've looked at and tried to

man these things based on the need and the flow of the inmates.
If there are areas that I feel that don't have to have coverage in
i

ar hours and things like that---we've already looked at that

and have cut
Go
for

back.

on to the next question:

How does CDC propose to pay

unfunded half of the new Vacaville prison, as well as for
sons to be located in San Bernardino, San Diego, Riverside, Los
les

County?

As

I

indicated here a minute ago, the

program for this will be spoken to and addressed in
the Governor's Budget, which will be submitted to the Legislature
the lOth.

on

the last question:
annual

costs for the California Prison System, when does

CDC
aga

ect that these costs will exceed $1 billion a year?
we re r

being an

now at the $550

to $600 million bracket.

Well,
Not

st and not knowing how inflation is going to be

for salar

all these other things that are related to this,

is diff
we

Given the acceleration of the

do i

lt for me to come up with an exact figure.

The best

based on our current cost and providing that there
-25-

r

was no inflat
year of 1990.

s

I guess for the f

on that would

would be around the
ar.

My own personal projection

be before 199

ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

Mr. Cha
Mr. Baker.

ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:

Are you reviewing your overall staffing ratio,

not just the new prisons?
MR. MCCARTHY:

We have to do that almost daily due to the influx

of inmates and we have it on most of the areas, based on inmate to
staff ratio.

If we put an additional 100 or 200 inmates into a par-

ticular institution, then we have to increase the staffing at that time.
ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:

But you review institutions such as San Quentin

and some of the others?
MR. MCCARTHY:

That's correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:

Not just on a daily basis, but for an overall

target for staffing?
MR. MCCARTHY:

For overall target, but.

ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:

You and I know when you get into those figures

we've about tripled the staff there and since the mid-'60's, we're
down, not up, about 20 percent in prisoners, even though it's overcrowded, we used to have 5- or 6,000 people there.

We're now talking

3,000.
MR. MCCARTHY:

You're correct.

San Quentin is based on, you know,

Wilson decision, and you know, hopefully, we win

we've appealed
that decision, we

ing the population.

start

If, when that

decision comes out in the next month or so, if it goes against us, we
will defin

have to review a great deal of staff at San Quentin.

We've already looked at that, and we are already aware of that.
-26-

At

current level, it is overstaffed.
ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:

Well, I'm greatly encouraged by your appoint-

fact that you're will

ment

ve done two tours there recently and the staff was stumbling

cause
over

I realize it's a dangerous place to work and has

a

of problems.
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:
ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:

u

to look at these things, be-

Inmates are stumbling, too.

Well, no they're not.

That's the point.

We

to have 5,000 people there and we never.
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

that ten

Let's take into consideration the fact

s ago, you had a different kind of inmate.

And the kind

're getting now are not necessarily all the good kids,

of inmates

you know, from your area and other communities in California.
ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:

You'd be surprised how many kids in my area

I donate.
MR. MCCARTHY:

Just in closing, I'd like to say that I appreciate

all the work the Legislature has done and especially this committee
ng us guidance.

for g

We have followed this guidance.

We also

apprec

the constructive criticisms and the points brought to our

at tent

consultants and by the Legislative Analyst office.

I think a

of us working together can really make something out of

this present system.

And, that is what I'm hoping for.

If you have

questions, I have staff from almost any department

any

that can answer any additional questions you might have before we
s

turn
CHAI&~AN

over to the next person on the agenda.

PRESLEY:

MR. MCCARTHY:

Can I have you just stand by before we.

Okay.

Fine.

Thank you.
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AS

F
invit

thank you

me to jo

of years ago on the subject.

st of all, Mr. Chairman,

you;

started out a couple

And, of course, I continue to be inter-

ested, since I'm one of those who is hell-bent on sending more criminals to prison.

I also have to be concerned about being hell-bent

on getting the

il

ies ready

them.

And just sitting in the

audience, it gives you a different perspective, actually, than being
up here, which is one of the reasons I was sitting in the audience.
And I heard a very deliberat

discussion, and having read this

report, I really am impressed at the progress that has been made.
And, I don't know if it's ent
members of

ly due to the Chairman or to the

s committee.

RMAN PRESLEY:

It's the Chairman.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN LA FOLLETTE:

[Laughter.]

But, I also suspect that it has

something to do with the cooperation from the new administration and
new director.

But, I would say that we are on the right track.

The

questions that I had concerning this report have been asked, such as
space.

The one flaw

I would find in this report is that whoever

prepared it has repeatedly used the expression "obsessed with security."
I, frankly, am one of those who is very concerned about security, and
I do not feel that if we are honing in on cutting staff, then it
should be cutting those who are going to provide the security, who
are the individuals who can become victims because we didn't provide
enough security.
have been
MR. DUNNE:

s

And, so that would be my one concern that may not
here this morning.
Mr. Presley.

Thank you.

Just one final thing we might do before

turning this over to the Legislative Analyst.
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First of all, I'd like

to also recognize that over the last month, especially the last week
or so, we have been

a lot of communication and dialogue with
st's off

s

the

The

. Analyst, in reviewing our

iately found some of the details in our planning,

plans,
which we

are correctable, and has given us suggestions that

we do some rethinking in terms of just how we're proceeding with the
design.

1

of days

the Leg. Analyst would like to commend them in

terms of work
we

We've been working very closely the last couple

a cooperative fashion with us, especially since

talking about the Vacaville prison.
are two things we would like to come forward with.

First

of all, we have this item before the Public Works Board on January
13.

The

rs that we gave to the

of the est

slative Analyst in terms

s are right overall, but, there are some differences

format between what the staff did and what our architect did.
These can

reconciled with the Legislative Analyst before the

ic Works

Secondly, in terms of the way we've got the
terms of utilities.

facil

Our architect, in the

ans, gave us a real nice, elegant utility system, which,

1

analysis, looks to be one which is an excellent systen
but

too cost

work

for us.

So, we are going to have to, in the

phase, to be able to evaluate the system in order to

make it more cost-effective.

Those two things need to be done.

And, we are taking the affirmative steps to do that.
some

, because they are going fast, because some of the issues

invo
that

There are

s, that the Legislative Analyst has pointed out rightly,
are

ls in terms of both the
-29-

estimates and in terms

do

of the scope of work
into work

to be corrected as we go forward

drawings.
Mr. Chairman, I apologize for being late,

but for two reasons I was.
your committee is deal

st, I think most of the issues that
with today are policy issues that I intend

to have my subcommittee share in following most of those recommendations.

Second

offers that I've gotten from the press to find

out where Dan White is being released have been so seductive, that I've
been out all morning trying to find out where he is [Laughter] so
that I could tell them to get my name in every paper in America they
were offering to me.

However, I've failed so far and maybe we can

find the answer here, I don't know.
My party is noon tomorrow.

That's why I was late.

[Laughter]

[Laughter.]

The one issue that does affect me, in terms of money we'll be
spending, at least from my own staff briefing, is the number of gun
towers that are being planned here.
MR

How many are there?

Guard towers?

We just went through that and that's 15 and in

the breakdown of them.

There's 8 of them manned on a 24-hour, 7-day

a week basis; there are four of them that are manned during day shift
only.

That was around the industrial areas, and there's an additional

three that are manned 16 hours a day, 5 days a week, and on weekends.
ASSEMBLYMAN AGNOS:

We're talking about what, approximately 2,000

people?
MR. MCCARTHY:

2,400.

ASSEMBLYMAN AGNOS:
MR. MCCARTHY:

About 3,000.

ASSEMBLYMAN AGNOS:
MR. MCCARTHY:

How many do you have in Vacaville now?

How many guard towers do you have?

Eight.
-30-

~~~~~~~A~G~N~O~S:

MR. MCCARTHY:

There are eight?

Yes.
Then how come we're putting almost twice

for a lower number of

as
MR

?

In my earlier testimony I indicated, you know,
of the Legislature was to operate both these facilities
lities.

as

AGNOS:
-------------------MR. MCCARTHY:

Yes.

The towers between the Level Threes are about

, which we feel is an acceptable standard.

700

What you

have to look at is the total acreage that is covered by your perimeter
fence.

n the other 1,200 beds, they are Level Twos, the towers there

are 1 400
ever,

t

, which I feel, you know, is not acceptable.

How-

good classification, and the type of people we put in
would be adequate for surveilance.
What does it cost to build a Guard Tower?
MR. MCCARTHY:

About $75,000.
Each?
Yes.

MR

AGNOS:

~~~~~~~~~~

And the staffing?

---several people speaking.]
MR. MCCARTHY:

Well, we just agreed that, with the staffing ratio,

we wouldn't do anything about it.
---several people still speaking.]
I think your staffing ratio is when you're
ta

Level Three people and sometimes maybe even Level Four.

Maybe we want to
just wonder

you the benefit of the doubt on that, but I

f we're overbuilding . . . . that's not a hostile state-31-

ment, it's just a.
MR. MCCARTHY:

No, it's not.

ASSEMBLYMAN AGNOS:

I want to

into, you know, why we're

doubling the number of guard towers.
MR

Well, actual

we're not . . . .

[Inaudible---several people speaking.]
WILLIAM HAMM:

Mr. Chairman and members, thank you for giving

me the opportunity to appear before you today.

I will be very brief.

The purpose of my remarks this morning is not to go into the details
of the new Vacaville facility.

I do have the people here that can

help you with details.
Rather, what I'd like to do is try to put the issue of fast-track
construction into a broader perspective.

A perspective that I think

this committee and the Legislature generally needs in order to protect itself and understand what the process is doing.

Let me begin

by stating what I think is obvious, so there is no doubt in anyone's
mind about where the Analyst's office stands on this.

Given current

sentencing practices, there can be no doubt at this point that we
must bring new prison beds on line and do it as quickly as possible.
And the administration has, to its credit, put a very high priority
on closing the gap between the number of beds that we need and the
number that are now on line.

And everyone involved in the agency

and the department is working extremely hard.

I can say this as

an outsider much better that the previous witnesses could say about
themselves.
to bring
mended for

But I can assure you, they are working extremely hard
se prison beds on line.
ir efforts.

And, I think they are to be com-

In attempting to put a high priority, or

putting a high priority on prison bed construction, the administration
-32-

set very ambitious t
case of

s for new prison construction.

lle facil
1984,

, the

The

date for the initial occu-

, of course, is less than five months away

, I m not sure that it is possible to bring any prison
facil

on 1

Regardless of how many road-

or how many corners are cut.

blocks are
s that

bel

such a short time.

can be done.

But the administration

And, if the administration is successful

involved in this massive effort, from the Governor on

and

down, deserves an enormous amount of credit.

I guess the point I

want to make is that simply moving felons, 1,200 or 2,400, into newly
cons

cell blocks or whatever portion of those cell blocks are

going to be occupied

May, is not the so

as the program is concerned.

measure of success as far

To be successful, the administration will

have to do a lot more than simply bringing in inmates before Memorial
Day.

It will have to construct a facility at Vacaville that, first
foremost,

And
staff-e

11 be serviceable for a period of from 50 to 100 years.
it will have to bring a facility on line that will be
, since the cost of operating the facility over time

11 dwarf the cost of constructing it.
, of course, it will have to bring the facility on line
the amount of money that you contemplated spending for that
facil
also
se

at the time you approved it.

These, I would stipulate, are

measures of success.

Personally, I have some

s that all of this can be done within the time allowed

by the

's schedule, particularly given where the Vaca-

lle project stands here on the

fth of January.
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Where does it

stand?

Unfortunately, the Analyst's office can't give you a very

complete answer at

s point.

is is because plans for a large

part of the facil

a few of

housing units that you

were being asked to approve today, are still
Without knowing what

the development stage.

sent complex is going to look like, and

here I'm referring not just to the housing units, but to the industries
into the security and other components of the complex as well as
housing, any cost estimate that I can give you, and frankly, that the
department can give you right now, is not one that is worth a whole
heck of a lot at this point.

The department believes that this lack

of hard data on what the facility is going to cost and what the major
components of it are going to look like is a price that must be paid
for fast tracking.

While the Analyst's office doesn't agree that

fast tracking invariably carries such a high price tag.

I will

acknowledge it at this late date, January of 1984, less than five
months before the target occupancy date, there isn't a whole lot of
opportunity for doing anything other than what the department is proposing to do and that is, have you approve the plans in stages.
primary concern, at

My

s point, is not the absence of detailed plans

for the industry's component or the security's component or anything
else.

It isn't even the lack of hard data supporting the cost esti-

mates for the housing units.

And, I tell you this after Jerry Beaver

and Rick Keller spent five-and-a-half hours yesterday with the department staff trying to pin down what the cost of those housing units
that are be

you today is go

to be.

Rather, my primary concern

is that the department's plans for the housing units raise a number
of policy issues

present some problems which this committee

might wish to address.

But, the timetable established by the admini-34-

the Vacaville facil

for br

strat

with

provide

to address these issues and

t

before

a

se

says you must

strat

on line simply doesn't

date on which the
ans in order to keep the

project on
to go through all of the issues and problems that

When we
the

's current plan, that the Vacaville facility suggests,

let me just mention a few very
that the

ans are wrong.

fly.

And, I do so not to suggest

I'm simply saying that as we review the

plans, what we know about the facility, these appear to be issues
that,

the past, have been of concern to you.

For we talked about

staffing; I note that the department has agreed to withdraw its
staffing plan and resubmit

at a later date.

I will tell you

that in my professional judgment, and that of my staff, there is no
way in the world that the staffing plan that ultimately is submitted
to provide for a 4-inmates-1-staff-person ratio.

is go

t

Right now it's about 3.1 to 1.

for improvement.
rat

I think there is room

They can reduce the staffing ratio or increase the

somewhat.

There is no way that that plan is going to

a 4 to 1 ratio when

cal

Perhaps

is ultimately submitted.

A second

has been of interest to this committee in the past is the

issue
con

STIRLING:

~---------------------

PRESLEY:

----~-------------

Go ahead.

STIRLING:

~---------------------

the
case, we

May I interrupt you . . . .

the staf

Is it because of the configuration of
ng can't be met?

t approve the bui
-35-

Because if that's the

and then expect somehow to

achieve a 4 to 1 ratio.
MR. HAMM:

Oh, I think

gesting that the 4 to 1 rat
sarily wrong.

the issue very well.

I'm not sug-

is right and the configuration is neces-

Although there are some problems with the configuration

that I want to address, or at least, some issues about it.
there are problems, I can't say.

Whether

But if your first priority was 4 to 1,

I don't think you can approve the plans for the housing units.

If,

on the other hand, you find the plans for the housing units acceptable,
in my judgment, you're going to have to relax the 4 to 1 standard that
you set.

Not for this facility, but for the San Diego medium-security

complex, because you can't get there from here.

I'm not sure my staff

isn't sure that you can get there at San Diego.

It may be possible.

It may not be.

But given what we know about the Vacaville facility,

if 4 to 1 is a constant, you can't approve these plans.

You can't run

that facility with only 1 employee for every 4 inmates • • . .
ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:

Just a second.

I'll be through in a second.

Over the 30-year life of the building, which had turned into a 100
year---the building costs are peanuts.
MR. HAMM:

That's exactly right.

ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:

Operation costs are going to bury us.

If,

what you're saying is true, than a 30-day, 90-day delay is not going
to be a problem to the taxpayers like the 100-year use of that building.
So, if you have constructive criticisms of the building plan, we ought
to hear those today because we're not going to go on to the other plans.
SENATOR ED DAVIS:

What is a good American standard for this level

of security in a staffing rat

?

Is there anything we should measure

this against?
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MR. HAMM:

colleagues in the Analyst's office have visited,

I don't know how many,
f

fferent prisons by now to take a look at the

ison

ts

staffing

required by

them.
~~~~_D_A~V~I~S:

100

of the prisoners working and all,

is it realistic to shoot for the 4 to 1?
I don't know
better.

about this subject.

It may be.

I don't know.

It may be that 3 to 1 is

Can anyone help us?

MR. HAMM:

Let me ask Larry Wilson, who is the Analyst for the

Department of Corrections' budget within the Analyst office, to tell
you and me what he knows about this subject.
LARRY WILSON:

To a large extent, Senator Davis, the staffing ratio

depends on the size of the housing units.
new

Recently, we surveyed several

security prisons.
SENATOR DAVIS:

Then the size of the housing units determine the

functions that take place?
MR. WILSON:

That's correct.

DAVIS:

~~~------~

To staff, to handle the level of the prisoner

and the level of the programming that is provided to those inmates.
MR. WILSON:

We surveyed several new medium-

isons throughout the United States and found staff-inmate

security
rat

That's correct.

s about 2.2 to 1, all the way up to, well 1 4.4 to 1.

that rat

excluded program staff and industry staff.

However,

As an added

point, we could point out, for example, that the California Men's
Co

San

its li
at San

s Obispo, which is run on a single-cell basis for

, has a ratio of about 4 to 1.
s

spo contain 300 cells.

SENATOR DAVIS:

However, the housing units

They have . . . .

Do they have 100 percent employment?
-37-

MR. WILSON:

No,

SENATOR DAVIS:
bananas.

s not.
All right, then.

You can't compare oranges and

So, do we have a comparison nationally of an institution of

this level of prison that are 100

occupied in an industry and

training and work?
MR. WILSON:

I can't give one ratio.

The ratio varies substan-

tially between institutions depending on their own program standards.
SENATOR DAVIS:
MR. WILSON:

Than you have no standard to shoot at?

Not that we can provide you with any certainty.

No,

we don't.
SENATOR DAVIS:

So, we really don't know whether it should be 1 to

3, or 1 to 4, or 1 to 5, or 1 to 2?
MR. WILSON:

Our wal

is driven by policy decisions made by the

Legislature.
ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:
prisoner to work.

And the Legislature wants every able-bodied

And, so that may make the difference.

In what the

staffing ratio is, that is.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

In traveling around the country -- let's talk

about that -- taking what you've seen

prisons around the country

(I'm talking about staffing, and then projecting what you see happening
at Vacaville) do you think the level of staffing would be just based on
that?

I know
MR. WILSON:

's not scientific.
Generally, the configuration the department has pre-

sented to you for Vacaville, we think the 3 to 1 ratio they presented
to you can be

somewhat.

However, with fuel programming, we

don't feel it can be increased substantially.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

So, 3.5 to 1, somewhere in that range?
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MR. HAMM:

3.3.

The way it is now.
Somewhere in that range?

MR. WILSON:

Well, if you

lude

l the perimeter security, as

well as all the programs staff, it's now 3.1 to 1.
any

specif

I can't say with

s what the right ratio should be.

be higher than 3 to 1.

We don't think you can

~it

We think it can

4 to 1 with the cur-

rent configuration and current policies of the Legislature in terms of
full programming.
MR. HAMM:

Let me take it one step further, Mr. Chairman.

I'm

not sure at this point that you can sit down and design a facility
from scratch that provides for 100 percent inmate work.

And, provide

a reasonable, acceptable level of security and keep it within the 4 to
1 ratio.

It may be possible, but I don't want to suggest in raising

this as an issue for your consideration; that we think we're smart
enough to know that 4 to 1 is the right ratio and something ought to
be done to get it up there.
DAVIS:
---------------

We don't know that.

We're not that smart.

Is anyone that smart?

ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

I'm not sure that I know anybody who would

bite on that one, Senator Davis.
SENATOR DAVIS:

What I would hope would not happen, and not that

I'm a great lover of building prisons, because I've never been a great
lover of bui

prisons, but I recognize that it's a reality.

We

get caught up with stopping progress from taking place, and the movement toward the construction of it, because we're caught up with whether
it should be 4 to 1, 3 to 1, and the like.
lle is a different prison than most.

I

to be a ho
then I

tal.

It's supposed

And, I think that if we are setting certain mandates,
we should be realistic enough and bite the bullet to
-39-

at the

make sure that we are shoot
the

decent medical care
than to say
or we don't 1

i

ike; that

, well, we don t

3 to 1 or

's

can be carried out.

Rather

like 4 to 1 and it's got to be

to be 5 to 1.

to move until you come back
goal.

, whether it's for work,

And, we're not going

a plan that accomplishes that particular

I think that's ridiculous.

I think that we've been caught up on

the idea of what is the proper model long enough.

And, I think that if

we stop the Department of Corrections from moving forward because we're
unsure as to what should be the ratio, I think that we are the ones that
are going to eat it.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
you can approach it.

I think we're approaching it about the only way
And, that's to take a good, hard look at the con-

figurations, doing everything we know to make those as employee-efficient
as possible.

And then, taking into consideration the level of the

prisoner, the work programs, all of those things, and trying to match
the staffing to that.

I think we can do that.

I think that Mr. Harnrn

has figured our biggest difficulty, as far as the Legislature is concerned, is we are on a
a little bit.

fast~track

construction which kind of constrains

But we can't help that.

and have been for a long time.

We're backed into that corner,

So, I think we have to continue taking

good, hard looks by the Legislative Analyst, by this committee, everybody, the department, and do the very best we can.

And hope that we

keep the cost as low as possible.
ASSEMBLYMAN AGNOS:

With humane conditions.
Yes, which of course, the Constitution requires.

Mr. Agnos.
SEMBLYMAN AGNOS:
credit for, I

Mr. Chairman, I think you ought to take some

, what's been happening.
-40-

People have acknowledged

that the problem has been turned around, that there have been some
, I think it's because

changes.

rmansh

your

, with

ment knows that
ment changes.

, and in particular

of hear

im, has

the

state dur

k

is

that were held around the

sed on this issue in a way the depart-

Legislature means business.

And, we've seem manage-

We've seen a whole bunch of things that I think are going

to produce the results that people, as well as the administration and
the Legislature want.

And I think you ought to take that kind of credit.

You deserve it as well as this committee.

Work that has been put in

by Mr. Sher and the rest of the members.
I just want to ask the Analyst about this 4 to 1 thing.

You know

it's a very catchy thing, and I acknowledge that we don't want to set up
any kind of false standard.

Let me just ask you, in your research or

survey anywhere in the country, can you tell us that there is, in existence today, a prison that approximates Vacaville in terms of the number
of prisoners as there are, or will be at Vacaville, with a 4 to 1 and
what is the ratio that exists there.
MR. WILSON:
of that size.

Mr. Agnos, the answer is no.

We did not find a prison

Most of the new prisons are smaller.

ASSEMBLYMAN AGNOS:

No prison approximates what we're doing at

Vacaville that has a 4 to 1 ratio?
MR. WILSON:

We didn't survey them all.

ASSEMBLYMAN AGNOS:

Okay, well, but, nevertheless you're telling us

we're not going to get 4 to 1, maybe 4 to 1 is impossible.
stop us

We ought to

4 to 1 with this kind of size and present population, with

this level of prisoner, with this number, with this kind of program, it
doesn't

st.

Maybe 3 to 1 is going to become the new standard, and
-41-

Is there

San Diego?

to

the

1

Amer

have.

.

11 be

there.

Is there any

know of, or in the world, that has 4 to 1?

When I

of the survey, I was speaking of new
-des

0

Again, with

of programming we're plan-

isoner who

that

designs,

?
th

be

level of

ning,
prison

Can you tell me what we projected in

to set

California is go

prisons

larger housing units

. .

ASSEMBLYMAN AGNOS:

New

MR. WILSON:

Okay.

No.

ASSEMBLYMAN AGNOS:

So,

, new designs.

s

the new standards, maybe 3.3 to 1,

pace aga

and California has set

Have you seen any?

?

We ought to drop this

4 to 1, if it's just a mythical figure.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

Well, they are go

to resubmit, so it could

be continued.
ASSEMBLYMAN AGNOS:

Well, I just hear what Mr. Alatorre is getting

to, and we can't be stalling every 30 to 90 days, based on a figure
st

that doesn't

the world.

ALATORRE:

I'm afraid of is that the department

to submit what

is go

And, without tak

and certain

Now,

that we want accomplished in the construction of
Full employment, humane conditions, certain things.
's

easy for them to come back to please everybody, and

knowing damn well
of these

, and I think that we have to

cons

ion; we have set certain standards that we want

take into cons

facilities.

1 everybody is going to buy.

s

they are not going to be able to accomplish all
we have set out, but in order to please the Legis-42-

to please this

lature, or in

X, Y, and Z so we're pleased.

, they set out and they do

But the end product doesn't accomplish

we want.

things

You see, what I'm interested in happening, is to make sure that
from the beg

, that those standards that we have set out, those

objectives that we have set out, in fact, are going to be met.
year after

Not a

opens, because we find out the things that we set out

were not correct.

No.

When we open, I want it to accomplish those

objectives that we have set out.

And, there is nothing mythical about

3 to 1, 4 to 1 or anything else.

All I care about is that we don't see

the same things that have happened in other institutions happen now
that we are opening up new institutions.
ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:

I don't want to see us slow down the building

of this much-needed facility at Vacaville.
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:
ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:

You're a cheapskate.

I'm a cheapskate; I admit it, and I think the

taxpayers are even cheaper than I am.

And, we are going to want to go

back to them very shortly, because this $495 million prison bond isn't
going to do it.

I'd like to see the committee hone in on the physical

plan and any improvements the Analyst can suggest in the staffing ratio
or in the configurations.

So, we can approve that portion of it.

ALATORRE:

~~~~----------------

question?

Look.

Could I just ask a fundamental

I mean, what expertise does the Analyst have in this partic-

ular area outside of going to visit institutions.
ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:
state in the press.

His five-page letter was heralded all over the

I'd like to hear.

ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

What do I care what's heralded all over the

press?
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BAKER:
to listen to these

I

't care what you care, Richard.

le

best

[Inaudible---both
We

I

on what we want in the

we should close our eyes to these people

're not

ison

ALATORRE:
CHAIR~AN

are

't

I

just because

to the people.

to be harmonious, Richard.

sit on the subcommittee.
final product.

We have

PRESLEY:

s.

I am not clos

my eyes to any.

Okay, why don't we get back to Mr. Hamm and let

him tell us.
ASSEMBLYMAN BAKER:

Could we

, though, Mr. Chairman, to

the physical plan because.
PRESLEY:
MR. HAMM:

think he s

I

The second issue,

to that.
again I

say it without implying

any criticism necessarily, is the configuration of the living units
themse

s.

The design calls

no subdivisions.

the 100-bed housing units to have

And these, of course, if they are overcrowded at

occupancy, as we expect them to be, that
unit.

There is no

at

is

smaller

scuss

Or

do not c

The

it's something I
We have a

s committee has spent

was some discussion about

l

cell blocks broken up into 33/33/34 separate living

having the 1
units.

iving units as there is

so an issue

and Folsom.

some t

ll be 200 inmates per housing

s

1

that separation right now.

Again,

want to bring to your attention.
heard about per

tioned the fact that, when you boil
11 guard towers to be staffed

1-t

ter security.

Mr. Agnos men-

all down, the plans call for
They won't always be the

same guard towers, but at any moment of any day there will be 11 guard

-44-

lle that will be staffed.

towers at new Vac
And, f

the

l

's

to establi
may

~

old Vacaville.

ion of the legislative

lly

ferent from the

plans for new

l

It's very costly.

facil

ies at Vacaville

is ature's, as you may know.

re

That may be

on some of

The current

staffing that is now at

iate, but because it has been an

issue, I wanted to bring it to your attention.

As far as the problems

are concerned that we have picked up in our review, I'll be very brief.
The utility services to the new facility will not be available at the
time inmates are moved into the new facility.
Secondly, there is no design for the administrative segregation
unit at this point, although you're being asked to approve the plans
covering that unit.
Th

, and I think this is very important for you to know.

According to the operating schedule of the new facility.
SENATOR DAVIS:

What is the administrative segregation?

The hole?

(Laughter.]
MR

HAMM:

That's the Department's term.

SENATOR DAVIS:
MR. HAMM:

Okay.

Administrat

control.

Protective housing is another term.

There are certain

terms, Senator Davis, that, as your Analyst, I try to avoid but .
[Laughter.].

. are certainly permissible for the committee to use.

other problem that I think is important is, at the rate the
facility is go
raw
until a new, 1

to be built, the department will have to use open
adjacent to the facility for up to two years
line is built to the sewage treatment plant.

was not covered in the EIR for the facility.

And, I think, will be a

matter of some controversy at some point down the road.
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This

And, fourth, as near as we can tell, the project estimate that
the department is us

does not

At this point, we don't know
new projects.

for needed equipment.
the

In any event, as I sa

would come from for those
before, and I think as Mr.

Baker and other members of the committee have put it
places you on the horns of a dilemma.

our faith

To take the time to go through

these problems and policy issues in a meaningful way would necessitate
slowing down the project.
On the other hand, you allow work on the project to continue as
I know you very much want to do---you run some risks.

And the risks

are that the final product may not line up precisely with your expectations.
rect.

It may have some built-in problems that are costly to cor-

I expect we're going to see an awful lot of change orders and

retrofitting for the facility at some point down the road.
My final comment, Mr. Chairman and members, is that the trade-off
raised by fast tracking, as it is being undertaken by the department,
really ends up p

ing weeks against years, even decades.

If, and I

say if, the compromises that must be made during the department's
design activit

s and your review activit

s, in order to meet the May

occupancy date, reduce the serviceability of the staff efficiency of
the new facility---a facility that, as has been brought out, is intended to last 50 to 100 years---the price of meeting that May target
date may turn out,
can't give you

retrospect, to have been unacceptably high.

I

guidance on, or any suggestions, as to resolving

these policy issues, or our policy issues.

But my purpose in coming

here today is simply, as I said, to try to put it in perspective---to
alert you to what, in the past, this committee has been interested in
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and what the features of the prison, as it's currently designed, you
should know about in advance.
Stewart,

Jerry Beavers, Rick Keller, Cheryl

Wilson would be

to assist the committee in

any way to further discuss the design.
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

Your feelings about the date, that May date

tell me about the problem.

You say that we are confronted by that par-

ticular date---besides the fact that maybe, you say, it's unrealistic.
Fine.

Then tell me why it's unrealistic and tell me what the problems

are.
MR. HAMM:

Well, as far as being unrealistic, I don't think that,

despite all of the hard work and sincere effort, to put the facility on
line by May, it's going to happen.

But that's a question of fact, and

in five months from now, we will know whether or not that was a valid
statement on my part or not.

And, believe me, if the department is

successful, and again my measure of success, not just putting inmates
in a facility that doesn't have utilit

s, that has an excess of staff

ratio---but, if it:s successful in bringing this project on line, I will
be among

st to commend

for doing this.
short.

But

Governor and all of his people

But, in my professional judgment, the timetable is too
's not my primary concern, Mr. Alatorre.

My primary

concern with the timetable is that it only takes into account those
that the department and its architect and its contractor need to
take in order to get the facility on line.

There is no room in the

timetable for this Legislature to express a different point of view and
to suggest that

no, we don't like the way it's being done.

We want these changes made because any change of any significance
that you

sist upon, the department will sit at that microphone or this

one and say that's going to cost us to have to slip that date into June
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or July or August or September.

That, as your employee, that's the

primary problem with the t

le.

No room for legislative input.

SEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

I total

agree with the fact that when

they start

st-tracking,

an objective

s

that they're going to accomplish

the next, say four months, that is a problem.

But

we also have a bigger problem.
MR. HAMM:

We sure do.

SEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:
that we're bringing in.

The problem is what do we do with the people

The thing that concerns me of the issues that

you have raised, and the question of utilities, or the question whether
in fact, say, come May or June, that they meet the objective of physically moving people in.

The quest

to me and the thing that concerns

me is what are we moving the people into?

And, if you are saying that

you are moving them into a place that has no utilities, you are moving
them into a place that doesn't have proper personnel to deal with the
institution, professional and otherwise.
MR.

Hru~M:

That to me is of concern.

I'm not saying the latter, Mr. Alatorre.

saying the former.

But I am

As near as we can tell, the time the utilities will

not have been hooked up to the new facility until sometime after May,
and the Department intends to have people in the facility during the
month of May.
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:
MR. HAMM:

I can't tell you.
ALATORRE:

~~~~--~~~~~~

I don't know.

You don't know why the utilities are not

up?

going to be
MR. HAMM:

I do not.

ASSEMBLMAN ALATORRE:
whether

Why is that?

are go

But that is what the.
All right, let's hear from the Department on

to be hooked up or not.
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RMAN PRESLEY:

Let's do it fast.

Mr. Hamm, I think if I'm

hearing what you're saying, your are questioning whether we should be
pushing, maybe so hard, for that Hay occupancy date.

You've got some

real questions as to whether you may not be better off to slide a few
months.
MR. HAMM:

I realize this is a very unpopular position to take,

but that is indeed my position.

I think we're trading a couple of

weeks, maybe a couple of months, and I'm very mindful of what Mr.
Alatorre has said and others have said.
seams in the existing facilities.
on line and do it quickly.

We're coming apart at the

We have to bring these facilities

But, by trading a couple of weeks, or even

a couple of months, we may get something back that pays dividends over
50 to 100 years and . .
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

Mr. Chairman.

Can he just answer any

question about the utilities and everything else?
CLARENCE VAUGHN:

Clarence Vaughn, the principal in charge of

Rosser-Kitchel office, consultant to the Department of Corrections.

In

the EIR, the utilities are deliniated as being available at the site
and will be, in fact, connected to the first 600 units.

Also, the

temporary holding ponds are deliniated in the final EIR.
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:
don't want to.

Won't you just answer the question!

I

.by saying 'connected', you're saying that the util-

ities will be there for the first 600 units.

Okay, now, why are they

saying that they're not?
MR. VAUGHN:

Well, in their review of the plans, they could not

see where the timetable provided for those utilities to be connected.
Perhaps Mr. Beavers can elaborate on this.
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ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

Let me ask you a question now.

Are you

the consultant or what?
MR. VAUGHN:

Yes, s
ALATORRE:

ASSE~1BLYMAN

All r

Who do you hold accountable if,

in fact, what you say is not correct?
MR. MCCARTHY:

Right here.

ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

Nah.

No . . . . [Inaudible---several people

speaking.]
MR. VAUGHN:
final EIR.

Those util

s are deliniated item by item in the

The holding ponds, the gas, the electricity, and in a big

package, the utilities, are to be brought into the package that is before the Public Works Board right now.
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

So,

other words, your position is that,

contrary to the Analyst, you say by the time that you open up, say in
May, the issue that was raised about utilities and the like, is not in
fact a real issue?
MR. VAUGHN:

Yes, sir.

review to the Legisl

And,

fairness, the data submitted for

Analyst's office was sort of contradictory and

difficult to understand.
[Inaudible---several people speaking.]
MR. MCCARTHY:

Getting back to accountability, though, I am not

going to put any inmates in any institution that hasn't got any utilities.
And, that's why I say it's in accountability, and that's not going to
happen.

I can assure you of that.

that statement.

I

And, I'll be held accountable for

1 that they can put those utilities in, but if

they don't . . . .
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ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

But the other thing is, I hope you also are

willing to accept accountability for the fact that you aren't going to
put them in without utilities and the like.

What I mean is, I hope you're

also going to be accountable for the fact that, with utilities into a new
facility, that you better damn make sure that you have the program available, so that there is work for the people to do, that there is proper
medical care and the like.
M~.

MCCARTHY:

I mean, that to me important.

I'm also very concerned about that.

Yes.

I'd just

like to make one more statement on what Mr. Hamm said about the time
element and then waiting for two weeks, for two months or three months.
As I indicated in the opening statement, we haven't got that luxury, and
I'm sorry to have to place the committee into that situation.

But with

our goal factor, and as I explained earlier, we're going to be struggling
to keep our head above water through the May date.
in my own mind that we'll even make it.

And I'm not too sure

But every week when you're talk-

ing about hundreds, last week there was a 148 growth in our department.
Every week we stall this thing-- the more inmates I have on me and less
space to put them in.

And right now, what I'm doing with inmates today,

in my own mind, is not acceptable.

It's not what I would like to be

doing with them, but we need this space.

We need it desperately.

We

need it now, and we cannot afford the two-week, two-month's delay.
ASSEMBLYMAN AGNOS:

Mr. McCarthy, you know, when one builds a

house with their own money, or they've got a contractor doing it, they
go out and check that house in the morning, they check it at night after
the contractor has finished working to make sure that things are being
done every day the way they wanted them to; and, they've contracted with
the $150,000 or $200,000 house they're building.
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We're building close

dollars worth of houses all over the state.

to a half a bill

your Department have one or more
every week, so

who are doing that every day or

we don't wind

Analyst suggests, we

these th

find that the plumb

was at the Tent Ci

section, as

Does

s

up, as the

was left off a

San Quentin and the temporary,

prefabricated showers that were bu lt

no heat in them.

The person

said 'we

who coordinated
MR. MCCARTHY:

Each institution, r

now, has already got a

project director and a project coordinator assigned to follow up on
these various activities.

As far as the Vacaville construction site,

I can assure you I'm probably going to have a pup tent staked out down
there myself.

And, I'll be watch

construction.

Because it means so much to me to get this thing on line

within the 1

s that I've set out.

ASSEMBLYMAN AGNOS:
MR. MCCARTHY:
Vacaville,

heat

Also, San Diego and the other.

Well, I feel if we once prove what we can do with

rest of it will

EMBLYMAN AGNOS:
fast-track

on almost a daily basis on its

11

Well, as

San Quentin in bui

the showers,

line.
said, because they were on a

ing those tents, they forgot to put

the tents.

You know, I'm a humanitarian; it's

something I would never have
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

You mean.

.Mr. McCarthy, if the Legislative

Analyst had positive suggestions in the next two weeks, you wouldn't
turn them down just.
MR. MCCARTHY:

We ve worked very close

Analyst and
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

with the Legislative

. [Inaudible---several people speaking.]
Ed, Ed wait a second.

Mr. Hamm, in your fourth

recommendation, you mentioned unfunded equipment.
about and how much?
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What are we talkiny

MR. HAMM:

Beds and furnishings in the day rooms.

What other

things, Jerry, did we pick up?
MR. BEAVERS:
~R.

MCCARTHY:

We can't find any.
Again, when the Governor's budget is submitted on

January lOth to the Legislature, this will.
SENATOR DAVIS: What I detect in the new team here, and not only
(there)
is/a very tightfisted Governor fiscally, but there's also a can-do spirit.
So, that's what we're going to do here.

I'm going to vote to let you go

ahead and believe that you're going to develop a mark one prototype.
You are going to learn a lot of things.
says are probably very valid.
two prototype.

Some of the things Mr. Hamm

But, then, we're going to go to the mark

By the time you get to mark three or four, you're prob-

ably going to have something you can be proud of in 10, 20, and 30 and
40 years, and, I think with your decades of experience, that the Legislature respects you and the kind of leadership you provide.
I'm going to go on faith, Mr. McCarthy, in developing a mark one
prison as a very workable institution and then improving on it as they
move around the state, rather than talking about it.

When, considering

the inflow of prisoners of more than a 100 net increase per week, this
means that we just have to go ahead with this.

I would make a motion,

sir, that we.
RMAN PRESLEY:

All right.

We will have to bring this to a

close, because the Senate is in session.

They are wanting us in there.

We did have another witness on the agenda -- Mr. Anderson.

Mr. McCarthy,

I'd like for Mr. Dunne or someone to meet with him separately, because
we're just not going to be able to hear from him today.
you very much.
MR. HAMM:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Mr. Hamm, thank

CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
was

You were very he

ing about those four or f

you cou

g

ful on all those points.
s that Mr. Hamm raised.

the committee members here a br

I
If

f memo in the next few

days, in response to that, I think that would be helpful.

And, Mr. Sher,

did you have a specific motion you wanted to make?
ASSEMBLYMAN SHER:
the discussions

I cast out the motion which reflects some of

that you, your staff, and my staff, had with the Depart-

ment that I think you'll find acceptable.

It's really in four parts.

The first would be to approve the housing plan.

Then, request the

Department to proceed to the Public Works Board as soon as possible to
secure the release of the previously appropriated funds.

With respect

to the inmate work program and the staffing patterns, the director indicated his position, and I would move that the committee request resubmission of the work program, accompanied by supplemental information on
the industry capitalization and product marketing plus the staff
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

tr~ining.

On that point, let's take that one separately.

Any problem with that?
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

When is it that we are supposed to.

(Inaudible].
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

The motion will accomplish what you were trying

to make sure, that when they move in they are going to have work opportunities.
so far.

And, the de

1 just isn't adequate in what has been prepared

The Department has said they're prepared to provide additional

detail along

se 1

s.

I don't think they have any objection to this.

It's not going to hold up the construction.
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:
am not hung up 1

I guess the only concern I have is that I

some of the members who are caught up with the whole

question that you have to get to the level of 4 to 1.
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CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

No.

This isn't staffing.

program we've been talking about.
that you shared.

On that, I thought it was a point

You wanted . . .

EMBLYMAN ALATORRE:
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
opportunity.

This is the work

Yeah, I know.

I ....

You wanted to ensure there was 100 percent work

The staff pattern, the third point, that's the one you just

addressed, and I think there's an amount of testimony to suggest we may
not be able to get to the 4 to 1.

But, the Department suggested it would

be willing to take a look at what they prepared so far and see if there
aren't possibilities for some . . . .
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

That's all fine, but I just don't want to

have the Department come back, like most departments come back, to please
the Legislature.

They do whatever the Legislature wants.

They know

damn well that it may not be even feasible to accomplish the thing, but
just in the process of trying to get the Legislature's approval, they
go, and later on we are saddled with the problem.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

We are not tying the staffing to the approval

of the construction, which we're going to approve today.
doesn't have to be approved today.

This staffing

They are prepared to look at it and

provide more detail . . . .
ASSEMBLYMAN ALATORRE:

[Inaudible.]

I

just wanted Mr. McCarthy,

and anybody else that is going to be involved in this, that I am not
interested in you coming back and making this happen, when, in fact,
it's not realistic to make it happen.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
ASSEMBLY~1AN

Okay . . . .

ALATORRE:

In fact, you come back and you can improve

the staffing ratio, then justify that.
to.
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I mean, that's what I'm trying

RMAN PRESLEY:
ASSEMBLYMAN SHER:
discussion and

s aga

sure that all these hous
facilities.

Okay.

Are you finished?
1 po

Just a f

, and that is we had a lot of

goes to a
un

Mr.

s are not

raised, to make
lt without any of the work

So, the people we talked to in the Department agreed to

point four, that substantial construction on industry and vocational
education facilities will have been completed by the time the second
600-unit is occupied with inmates.

And, I don't think we've any

problem with that.
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:
by Mr. Alatorre.
SECRETARY:

Okay.

Mr. Sher moves that motion.

Seconded

Call the roll.
Senator Boatwright--

i

Senator Davis--aye; Senator

Presley--aye; Assemblyman Alatorre--aye; Assemblyman Sher--aye; Assemblyman Sher--aye; Assemblyman Gogg
CHAIRMAN PRESLEY:

-absent.

Thank you very much.
########
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Go get 'em.

DOCUMENTS RELATING TO
VACAVILLE EXPANSION
December 1983 - February 1984
The following documents and exchanges of let-·
ters between the Department of Corrections,
the Legislative Analyst, the Joint Committee
on Prison Construction and Operations, and the
Joint Legislative Budget Committee, both before
and after the January 5, 1984, hearing of the
Joint Prisons Committee, provide the background
and followup for this hearing
These documents are not meant as the complete
file on the Vacaville expansion but include the
basic documents for that period of time
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925 l STREET. SUITE 650
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95814
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December 9, 1983

Mr. Daniel McCarthy, Director
Department of Corrections
630 K Street
Sacramento, California 95814
Dear Mr. McCarthy:
I am responding to your letter of this date.
In order to expedite development of the new prison at Vacaville and,
at the same time, preserve for the Legislature an opportunity to review
plans for the facility, I believe it would be appropriate for the
Department of Corrections to:
1. Proceed with the preparation of working drawings for the precast
concrete panels, and
2.

Initiate the advertising/bid process.

I understand that you \'li 11 ne:t award any contract for the purchase
of be ranels themselves until after the appropriate committees of the
Le9islature have had 30 days to review the preliminary plans for the
housing unit, as provided by SB 422.
Sincerely,

Walter W. Stiern
Chairman
cc:

t1embers of the Joint Legislative Budget Committee
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STATE OF CALl FORNIA- YOUTH AND ADULT CORRECTIONAL AGENCY

GEORGE DEUKMEJIAN, Governor

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
P. 0. Box 714
Sacramento, CA 95803
(916) 445-7688

December 13, 1983
The Honorable Robert B. Presley
Chairman, Joint Committee on Prison
Construction and Operations
State Capitol, Room 4048
Sacramento, CA 95814
Dear Senator Presley:
NEW VACAVILLE
Thank you for being able to attend the briefing meeting yesterday on
the vacaville construction process. It is my understanding that,
based upon the briefing and the attached letter we received from
Senator Stiern (regarding precast concrete panels at the December 15,
1983 PWB meeting), you have agreed that we should submit the preliminary plans for the housing units plus the proposed staffing patterns
and proposed inmate work/training programs before the Legislature
reconvenes.
It is our intention that this package will be submitted the week of
December 13th. You also indicated that you would try to call a meeting of the Joint Committee on Prison Construction and Operations on
January 5th. Before that time, my staff and I will be happy to brief
any of the members of the Joint Committee in detail on the Vacaville
program and we will attempt to do the same with members of other
affected legislative committees.
Thank you for taking the time out of your busy day to listen to what
we consider to be a landmark project in the California Prison Construction Program.
Sincerely,
.

)

//-/

..

.1·~··:!:!//~ /i1/d7!;?
· .. "iSANIEL J. McCARTHY/
' Director of ~tions

Attachment
cc:

Senator Walter Stiern
Assemblyman Byron Sher
Senator Alfred Alquist
Assemblyman John Vasconcellos
Mr. Robin Dezember
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December 22, 1983

Mr. Daniel J. ~cCarthy, Director
Department of Corrections
630 K Street
Sacramento, California 95814
Dear Mr. McCarthy:
This is in regard to the information on the proposed 1,200-bed Level
III prison and 1,200-bed level I/II prison at Vacaville which you submitted
to the Joint Legislative Budget Committee on December 13, 1983. Your
transmittal ietter i~dicated that any questions pertaining to the submittal
should be directed to staff in the planning and construction division of
the depart~ent. Accordingly, the Legislative Analyst will be advising your
staff of the questions a~d clarifications that he believes the Legislature
needs in order to understand fully your plans with regard to the proposed
projects. The committee's preliminary review of your proposal has
identified some major policy concerns that I believe warrant your personal
attent~on.
To enable the Joint Legislative Budget CoMmittee to respond to
your propos2l within the 30-day review period, I ask for your prompt
attention to these concerns.
1. Housing Unit Modules
The draft program for the housing unit portion of the Level III
prison indicates that the prison is to be divided into two 600-bed
facilities. Each facility is to include six housing units--five 11 mainline 11
units, containing 100 cells each and one unit containing 50 beds for
administrative segregation and 50 beds for orientation.
Your staff indicates that the structural systems for the facilities
would allow each housinq unit to be subdivid~d into smaller living groups
of 33 or 34 inmat~s. The walls required for subdividing the units,
however, are not included in the project.
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The Department of Corrections' planning guidelines ("Facilities
Requirement P1a~ ), which were sent to the legislature in April 19eO,
indicate that new lfvel III and Level IV facilities will be designed with
living group~ o~ not more than 50 inmates. Accordingly, I ask that you
respond to the following three questions:
11

o Have you abandoned your earlier design objective?
o If so, what are the advantages and disadvantages of having larger
living groups?
o If not, under what circumstances would the department construct
the dividing walls and what is the estimated cost of the walls?
2.

Cell Doors

The preliminary plans for the level III housing units show
individual cells of 60 square feet with 11 in-swinging" cell doors. In my
letter of December 8, 1983, I recorr.rr.ended that you not proceed with early
purchase of the i nYtard swinging ce 11 doors. In thatTetter, I indicated
that before a final decision is made on these doors, your department should
secure the approval of the State Fire Marshal's office.
o Has the State Fire ~arshal provided written approval for the
installation
of these doors?
.
3.

Prison's Security System

Your plan proposes construction of a number of permanent and
ry perimeter towers and installation of an intrusion detection
system. In fact, the perineter security system appears to be more
extensive than the perimeter security proposed for new level IV prisons.
o Please identify and provide the rationale for each component of
the prison complex security system.
o How does the proposed security system for the Vacaville prison
complex compare with the system to be installed at the new
Tehachapi and Folsom level IV facilities?
o Has the department adopted new standards with respect to
perimeter tO\>Iers and other security measures at new prisons?
o Please submit the department's standards for a11 security
measur~s f~r level I, II, III and IV prisons. and discuss the
need for each element of the various systems. This portion of
info~1ation is not necessary for legislative review of your
December 13 submittal but should be made available as soon as
possible.
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4. Temporary Support Facilities
The curren~ project schedtJle for the Vacaville prison indicates that
the first 600 beds of the Level III prison will be occupied in May 1984.
The remainin~ ~00 beds are scheduled to be occupied in July 1984. The
inforrr.ation provided by your department indicates that a number of
"temporary'' su~port facilities will be needed in order for this prison to
be occupied as scheduled. These temporary support facilities include
towers, cooking and dining facilities and a sewage disposal system. It is
my understanding that these temporary support facilities would be replaced
eventually with permanent facilities.
o Please provide a sc~edu1e which indicates when permanent
facilities will be available to replace the temporary ones, and
identify the anticipated costs and funding source for each
temporary and permanent facility.
5. Architect's Contract and Project Schedule
The Analyst ~dvises me that your department recently submitted
copies of all contracts with consultants and architects who are involved in
the planning of new prisons. According to that information, there is no
contract currently in force between the state and the architect designing
the Vacavill~ prison.
o Please advise me as to how your department can authorize the
architect to proceed before a formal contract has been signed.
o Under these circumstances (1) how is the architect paid, (2) how
does the depart~ent determine the amount to be paid, (3) who
authorizes payment and under what authority, and (4) what is the
source of funds?
·
Your current schedule indicates that you intend to proceed with
preparation of working drawings on all bid packages prior to either
legislative ~eview of the preliMinary plans or the State Public Works Board
approval of the preliminary plans. For example, your schedule shows that
workir.g drawings for the Vacaville level IIJ housing unit will start the
last week in November 1983--two to ~hree weeks before the preliminary plans
were submitted to the Legislature. Government Code Section 13332.1l(b)
requires reversion of project funds where state agencies undertake working
drawings prior to Public Works Board approval of preliminary plans.
o Please.indicate {1) how this schedule accommodates the
requirements of the Government Code, and (2) your understanding
of the legislature's role and the State Public Works Board's role
in reviewing and approving these projects.

Mr. Daniel J. McCarthy

6.

December 22, 1983

-4-

Staffing Requirements

Your department indicates that operation of the 2,400-bed prison
complex (1,200-bed Level III and 1,200-bed Level 1/II) will require a total
of 780.5 positions. This staffing level indicates an inmate-to-staff ratio
of 3.08:1. Chapter 958, Statutes of 1983, mandates a 4:1 inmate-to-staff
ratio for the new medium security prison at San Diego.
o Please explain the justification for exceeding the 4:1
inmate-to-staff ratio at the Vacaville complex.
According to the Analyst, some portions of the staffing plan rely
upon the existing personnel assigned to the adjacent California Medical
Facility at Vacaville. The staffing requirements for the new facility are
particularly important because the proposed design may be used as a
prototype for new prisons proposed at San Diego, lone, and/or Avenal.
o How is the proposed staffing pattern at Vacaville consistent with
the provision of Chapter 957, Statutes of 1983, which requires
that each 1,200-bed facility be functionally separate from any
other existing or planned prison facility?
o In order to more fully understand the staffing implications of
the Vacaville design, please provide information on the number of
additional staff needed for this facility to operate as a
functionally separate prison. For example, what additional
executive, administrative, custody, food service, maintenance,
and program positions would need to be added if the complex were
to be function~lly separate?

7.

Inmate Work Program

The department submitted an inmate work program which identified
work assignments for the 2,400 inmates to be assigned to the Vacaville
complex. The plan relies heavily upon integration of vocational programs
with prison industry work assignments. This close association between the
vocational program and industry program is a positive feature of your plan.
It should result in improved operational efficiency in the industry's area
and provide more meaningful work opportunities to inmates.
Industry/Vocational Program--The information submitted in support of
the inmate work program, is not sufficiently detailed to substantiate that
the proposed types of industries are viable at the level contc~p1ated in
the department's plan. For example, no market studies, implementation
plans or funding plan have been submitted to substantiate the viability of
such industries as vehicle repair and vehicle parts (204 inmates), metal
fabrication (196 inmates) or manufacturing of plastic bags (29 inmates}.
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Mr. Daniel J. McCarthy
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December 22, 1983

o Please prcvide the specific detailed information on your plan to
implement these programs at the new Vacaville prison.
o I also request that you indicate whether these or other new
industries can be implemented at existin9 prison facilities where
there are large numbers of in~ates who do not have work
assignments. This inforw.ation would be useful for a genera1
review of the industries program and need not be provided within
the same timP frame as the other information requested in this
letter.
In November 1982, I requested that the department provide a
statewide Prison In~ustries Work Plan. The interim director subsequently
advised me that the requested Plan would be provided to the Legislature by
March 1, 1983. As yet, we have not received the Plan.
o Although this inforw.ation is not needed within the current 30-day
review period, p1~csP. advise me as soon as possible of your
current schedule for submitting the Plan.
Institutional Suyport--The inmate work plan includes approximately
600 work nssiqrments re ated tc general support of the prison. For
example, 180 inmates are assigned to ~aintenance shops, even though this is
a new prison. There are 120 inmates assigned as housing porters/clothing
room workers, and two inmates assigned to shoeshine activities in the staff
barber shop.·
o Please identify the basis for the number of inmates assigned to
all support activities, and the department's basis for concluding
that assigning this many inmates to these activities would
provide meaningful full-time employment of inmates.
o How does the number of inmates assigned for maintenance compare
to the number at existing institutions?
Sincerely,

Walter W. Stiern
Chairman
cc:

Hon. Alfred E. Alquist
Hon. Robert Presley
Hon. John VasconcPllos
Hon. Byron D. Sher
Michael Franchetti

i

,

1\,. ~''

,

<

l !t:' '_., '

}-.'1

I'

• ', i
j

,...._

I

' !''

.1',

1'\~,! < j

I

''

,,,

f \

I\:\,

_,(' ~s-.

i

':.

rcD.r; },

~.... /

."';, '

1 (

'''-J

December 22, l9bJ

To:

Members of the Joint Committee on Prison
Construction and Operations

From:

Senator Hobert Presley, Chairman
Assemblyman Byron Sher, Vice Chairman

He:

California State ~rison at Vacaville
Proposed 2400 Bed Level II/III Complex

meeting of the Joint Committee on Prison Construction and
Operations has been scheduled for the mcrning cf ,;edr:.esdR~-' 4
( ,~ary 1984. The purpose of this meeting is to review the
plRnning proposals developed by the California Department of
Corrections (CDC) for the 2400 Bed Level II/III Prison Complex
to be built at Vacaville.
A

To assist you in reaching the best decisions on this land~ark
project - which will also serve as the model for numerous other
prison complexes proposed for construction throughout California an Analysis and Recommendations Report has been prepared by Committee Consultants. A copy of this report is attached. At the
front of the report is an Executive Summary, which also lists and
briefly explains the recommendations for approval/disapproval of,
or changes to, the various project segments.
It is requested that the report be reviewed prior to the 4 January
1984 Joint Committee hearing on the Vacaville prison complex. For
those of you who may wish more detailed information about the
Vacaville project, the numerous design and program documents are
avCJ.ilable.
In conclusion, we are pleased to report that cue Planners and
their Outside Contract Managers have given complete reorganization

and redirection to the planning of new state prisons. The
Vac::-oville project is an impressive result of this improved
org;c1ni :; ; _; _ t ion and change of direction. The design and prci:r;<Jn
for the Vacaville project is, for the mcst part, hi~hly s~tis
f;Jctory and underscon:s that the State of C;_~lifcr::iia is nov: in
a positi:Jn to provide prison facilities it can afford to build
and to operate,
Sincerely,

Senator hobert Presley, Chairman

Assemblyman Byron Sher, Vice Chairman
cc: Assemblymen Agnos, Baker and Sterling
~r. Chaderjian, YACA Secretary
Kr. Daniel ~cCarthy, CDC Director
Iv:r. Dennis Dunne, COC Deputy Director
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CALIFORNIA STA'l'E

PRISe;~

AT VACAVILLE

2400 BED LEVEL II/III COf1:PLEX

- Analysis and Recommendations -

Lewis H. Fudge, Consultant
Joint Committee on Prison
Construction and Operations
December 22, 1983
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Design and Construction_De§sription
The Vacaville prison complex will provide housi~G, program and
support spaces for 2400 Level II/III inmates. Located on a ZQ
acre parcel of land adjacent to the existing California OCedical
Facility (C~F) - Vacaville, the new cooplex will consist of two
1200 bed, self-contained f'ac ili ties. Cne 1200 bed facility will
house Level II inmates; the other 1200 bee facility will house
Level III inmates. Each facility will be further divided into
two 600 bed housinc units. At need, the complex can be open1 ted
at l2Q percent above design capacity,
The projected total cost for the new Vacaville prison is;irr22 • .5
million, or about £2l thousand per bed space. This, of course,
is most satisfactory..
It represents a massive reduction
from previous $90/100 thousand per bed costs projected for prototype prisons as initially planned by the Department of Corrections
and its Outside Contract Managers duri~g the time period 1980-198).
Indeed, the new Vacaville prison replaces
"Cadillac Prison
Plans" with less costly "Ford Prison Plans~ as mandated by the
State Legislature.
Equally gratifying, the time required to plan and construct the
Vacaville complex - and all additional prisons which will be
patterned from it - will be greatly reduced. This will be achieved
via "fast track" design and construction methods, combined with a
pre cast modular panel erection system. Through adherence to these
'Tast track" methods and the modular panel system, the Department
of Corrections is projecting that the first 600 beds of the Vacaville
complex will be ready to occupy by May 1984, and that the total
complex will be completed by February 1985! By way of comparison,
the Southern kaximum Security Prison Complex at Tehachapi, which
has been in planning and construction phases since 1980, will not
be ready for occupancy until at least June of 1985.
Institution Mission and Program
The mission of the new Vacaville complex is to provide work/training
opportunity for 100 percent of the designed inmate populaticn and to
provide adrr.inistrative, support, and industries/vocational training
programs to fulfill this mission. Some 740 inmates will be employed
in a variety of self-supportin~ prison industries, which will include
Modular Construction of Frison Components, Public Vehicle Repair and
Refurbishing, Ketal Fabrication, Masonry and Ceramic Products, Bakery
Goods, and a ~ulti-Agency Laundry.
l:.xtensi ve Vocational Training programs will be located in eac.h 1200
bed unit.
Instruction will provide skills for subse~~cnt use in
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prison industries and construction programs and in maintenance
and service functions within the prison complex. The combined
vocational tr8ining and on-the-job work experience will, in
addition, prepare inm2tes for gainful employment upon their release to parole. Some ZQQ inmates will be assigned to a wide
as ortment of vocational programs.
Academic ~ducation, in addition to prov1a1ng general classroom
work through twelve grades, will feature math and elementary
science instructio~ which will enhance student ability to function
competently in construction, manufacturing, uaintenance and service
enterprises both inside and outside of prison. A total of 254
inma s will be assigned to the Academic Program.
Remaining inmates will be assigned to institution maintenance
(100), culinary services (188), and the standard miscellary of
clerical, janitorial, warehouse, clothing distribution and other
traditional prison job functions.
These balanced, flexible, and interrelated programs will fulfill
the legislative mandate that all able bodied prisoners will work.
In this way, the heavy costs of imprisonment will be reduced, a
positive institution environment will be achieved, and participating
inmates will acquire the skills and attitudes necessary to become
responsible and self-sup;,orting citizens upon their rel<~ase back
into the mainstream of society.
St;1 f. inv Pattern
numocr of staff required to operate the new Vacaville has not
yet been fully determined. The Draft Facility Program, dated
12 December 198J (page l9J) lists a total of 723.4 staff positions,
including required relief. When staff paid out of the Inmate
lfare Fund (IWF) and/or otherwise budgeted are subtracted from
ss total, a modified staffing total of 621.10 positions is
achieved. This equates to a ratio of ~ inmates per staff member.
This is lower than the 4 to 1 ratio which has been mandated by the
gislnture.
A second Proposed Staffing Pattern, dated lJ December 198J lists
a higher staffing total of 780.47 positions and a mod1fied total
of 668.JJ staff persons, for an inmate to staff ratio of 3.6 to 1.
Both staffing patterns are unsatisfactory and deceptive. The required 4 to 1 ratio is not met, even though more than 2Q staff
positions required for Perimeter Guard Tower Coverage are arbitrarily
excluded from both modified totals. Because of these two conditions,
the proposed staffing pattern will require fur-r;her scrutiny, clarific<'tion and trimming before it will be ready for final approval.
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It is of utmost importance that the staffing pattern for new
Vacaville - as well as for all other prison complexes to be
patterned after it - be as lean as possible, without sacrificing
security or program effectiveness. Although the capital outlay
costs for new prisons are high - more than $1 billion projected
through 1987 - these costs represent only 10 percent, or less,
of total annual operating costs over a 20 year period. i\n<:l the
number of staff determine what these annual opercting costs will
be each year.
RecommEmda tions
Based upon a careful study of the preliminary drawings and the
design and programs documents ava~lable to date, the following
recommendations are made to the members of the Joint Committee
on Prison Construction and Operations.
1.

Site Development and Weatherization
In order to expedite the new Vacaville project, approval
has already been given by the Joint Committee and the
Public Works Board to proceed with this first phase of
construction.

Also in order to expedite the project, approval has been
given to proceed with this early design phase. However,
the CDC will not award any contract for the purchase of
the panels until after the appropriate committees of the
legislature have had JQ days to review the preliminary
plans for the housing units, as provided in SB-422.
It is recommended that final approval be granted when
the Legislature convenes in January 1984.

J.

Prelimina~~lans for Foundations, Under Build~Qg__~nd
Off Site Utili ties, Preliminar,y Estimate s 1 and C·utline
SDecifications

It is recommended that these plans and bid packages be
approved after they have been reviewed with satisfaction
by the Legislative Analyst.
4.

Draft Facility Work/Training and Lther Programs
Approval is recommended, but with the clear understanding
that all proposed programs, particularly the production
based work programs, will be fully developed and ready
for operation when the total institution complex comes on
line and is ready for full occupancy.
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5.

Staffin~

Pattern

It i:; recommended that the pro ::;ed :;t~tffi
v1ttern
not be
ved at this early stage of the project. Before approval is granted, CDC planners should c;ive close
scrutiny and consideration to the deletion of what appe~rs
to b0 an excess number of staff. In addition, it is
"
rec or:J~ncnde d th2 t the more th;:m iQ. custody positions
required to provide Guard Tower Coverage be included in
the adjus d Staff Total and factored into the final
Inmate to Staff Ratio.
To insure a maximum degree of future operational effectiveness in both costs and programs, it is an absolute
necessity that staff be selected and apportioned fer
quality rather than for mere quantity.
Conclusion
C
Planners and their Outside Contract ~anagers are to be commended for the outstanding work that h2s been accomplished during
198J to reorganize and redirect the ~ew Facilities Requirements
Plan. Design and construction of desperately needed new prisons
s been greatly expedited, and design and construction costs
have been markedly reduced. Moreover, with the ccoper2tion of
the Prison Industry Authority and its new General ;·.l:::m3cer, unsatisfactory status quo inmate programming will be repl ced with
self-supportive and production based work/training programs.
The Cqlifornia prison system is now headed in a proper direction and
toward a truly cost and program effective future.
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December 28, 1983

TO:

Members of the Legislature

FROM:

Senator Robert Presley, Chairman
Joint Committee on Prison Construction and Operations

RE:

Hearing 8 a.m. Thursday, January 5, in Room 3191
regarding New Vacaville Prison Design, Forerunner of
New and Less Expensive Prison Design for State of
California.

A meeting of the Joint Committee on Prison Construction and Operations has been scheduled for 8 a.m. Thursday, January 5, in Room
3191. The purpose of this meeting is to review the planning
proposals developed by the California Department of Corrections
(CDC) for the 2400 Bed Level II/III Prison Complex to be built at
Vacaville. Any member of the Legislature interested in prisons
may want to attend.
To assist in reaching the best decisions on this landmark project
- which will also serve as the model for numerous other prison
complexes proposed for construction throughout California - an
Analysis and Recommendations Report has been prepared by Committee Consultants. Copies of this report are available from my
office. At the front of the report is an Executive Summary,
which also lists and briefly explains the recommendations for
approval/disapproval of, or changes to, the various project segments.
In conclusion, we are pleased to report that CDC Planners and
their Outside Contract Managers have given complete reorganization and redirection to the planning of new state prisons. The
Vacaville project is an impressive result of this improved
organization and change of direction. The design and program for
the Vacaville project is, for the most part, highly satisfactory
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and underscores that the State of California is now in a position
to provide prison facilities it can afford to build and to
operate.
The Joint Prisons Committee will soon complete its first year of
ration. The Committee has played the major role in helping
reduce prison costs and design strategies. From the days two
years ago when prisons such as the Tehachapi Prototype were being
hailed as the plan for future California prisons--at $100,000 per
cell--we have worked with the Department of Corrections consistently and persistently until per-cell costs are now in the
$50,000 range for future prototypes. And many of these are
planned for double celling, reducing the per-inmate housing cost
even further.
We will prepare figures for distribution soon to show the impact
of the committee and the Legislature in bringing this about.
RP:rhb
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December JO, 19BJ
JOINT COMMITTEE HEARING ON
PROPOSED CALIFORNIA STA'rE PhiSON - VACAVILLE
- Possible Questions and Background Information Introduction
On. 22 December 198J an Anal sis and Recommendations workup on the
proposed 2400 Bed Level II III prison at Vacaville was issued to
Members of the Joint Committee on Prison Construction and Operations.
This memo is written as a supplement to the earlier Analysis and
Recommendations workup. It's purpose is to provide a listing of
questions for use by Committee fv'Jembers at the Hearing on the
Vacaville project, scheduled for Thursday 5 January 1984, at 8:00AM,
in Room 3191. Below each question is a brief explanation of the
reason for the question.
Questions and Background Information
1.

Are projected costs,scheduled completion dates, and work/training program proposals guaranteed by California_Department of
Corrections (CDC) Officials?
Background: - Projected total cost of the CMF 2400 Complex
is $122.5 million, or roughly $21 thousand per cell or bed.
This is a major decrease from the $20/100 thousand per cell
costs for earlier planned prototype prisons, as at Tehachapi.
- CDC planning lists completion dates of May 1984 for the
first 600 beds at new Vacaville and February 1985 for completion of the entire project. Based upon prior serious
delays in meeting completion dates, the preceding dates
appear optimistic.

- The listed array of Work/Training Programs is impressive,
more tokenism than authentic. For example,
Southern Maximum Security Prison at Tehachapi
ground construction phase, specific Prison
not yet been finally determined.
'Nhat are the advant'l&esLdisadvantages of the precast construction
methods as compBred with onsite pour and tiltup construction

Precast construction, which is proposed for
ans that the panels may be built off site,
then truck hauled to the project site for erection. Tiltup construction means the sections are poured on site (atop
the floor pours) then raised into position.
Precast may be faster, but requires increasing truck
haulage costs over distance: tiltup may be slightly slower
but avoids haulage costs and may result in better buildings
at lower costs.
Mr. Ken Anderson, a civil engineer from Hayward, will
appear at the Hearing to explain the advantages/disads of these competing construction techniques.
).

Will the

d~sign

and construction methods proposed for the

Vacaville project serve as a model (prototype) for other prison
complexes authorized for construction at lone, Avenal, Adelanto
and in San Diego,

~iverside

and Los Angeles Counties

Background: With some modifications the CMF 2400 complex
is well suited for prison complexes at the Classification
Levels II, III and IV. Cost and time for construction,
us
new Vacaville design and construction methods,
instead of the earlier Tehachapi prototype, will be reduced by roughly one-half.
4.

Has the Prison Industries Authority and its new General Manager
developed markets 1 start up funding proposals and amortization
methods for the production based work programs for the new
Vacaville prison?
Background: The Level III facility will accomodate a
vehicle repair/refurbishing shop, a vehicle parts/refurbish-
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ing shop and a metal fabrication shop. A total of 410
inmates are to be assigned full time to these shopso
The Level II facility will feature a mobile construction
enterprise, a masonry/ceramics products shop, a multiagency Bakery, a plastic bags plant and a multi-agency
Laundry. A total of ]gQ inmates are to be employed in
these enterprises.
If the above programs are to be transformed from mere
"paper proposals" into working realities, detailed
planning should be underway ~ to determine markets,
budgets for startup costs, and production techniques.
Funding should also be amortized over time from annual
profits from each interprise.

5.

Will the Work/Training based program developed at the new
Vacaville prison serve as a model for other new prisons proposed by the De2artment of Corrections?
Background: The Legislature has mandated that CDC prisons
be as self-supportive as possible and that all able bodied
prisoners will work. Earned good time has been provided
for work/training program participation.
It is of absolute importance to provide sufficient work/
training opportunities if the above cited mandate is to be
met. In other words, the CDC must make an abiding commitment to this program and not be content with a mere "lip
service" listing of good intentions which may never be
implemented.

6.

How close will the staff ratio for new Vacaville approach the
4 to 1 ratio mandated by Senate Bill 422?
Background: Section 13-C-Item 2 stipulates that: "The
inmate to staff ratio of the complex (San Diego) will not
fall below four to one."
Although this section applies to the authorized San Diego
facility - a Level III, work based complex - it is fair to
assume that the 4 to 1 inmate to staff ratio should also
apply to CMF 2400 and other prisons of similar design.
The staff ratio for new Vacaville, submitted 13 December
1983, has a theoretical staff ratio of ).6 to 1. However
the "true" ratio, which includes officer coverage for
Guard Towers, is only 3.3 to 1. CDC should make every
effort to raise this ratio closer to the mandated 4 to 1.

7.

Related to the above 1 will new Vacaville require a 24 bed
Infirmary and 22.78 stafT positions if in-patient care is
limited to 72 hours, and major medical services " ••• both
testing and procedures will be provided at other medical
facilities outside the complex ••• either at the California
Medical Facility (CMF) Hospital or a community hospital,
as required?"
Backgrounds CDC medical costs will exceed $£2 million
during the fiscal year 198)-84. At the same time, there
is an ever greater reliance upon hospitals in the local
communities to take care of all but the most routine of
services.
It does not appear that such expensive services should
duplicated in the planning and construction of new
Vacaville and other proposed prisons.

8.

Is it necessary that the new Vacaville prison have a total of

18 Gua!:cL_Towers,

a~_£ro

eo sed

in the Qlannin_g data St!.Qmi tted

Background: The original new Vacaville Siting Plan
has a total of only £ Guard Towers. This total had increased to 18 in the December 1983 Siting Plan. Although
not all
towers are to be manned at all times, the
total of 18 seems excessive for a Level II/III prison
complex. -

se

By way of comparison, the existing Vacaville Prison (CMF) a Level III prison with a current population of more than
trooo - s only .§. Guard Towers. Each Guard Tower requires
~positions if manned on an around the clock basis.

9.

How does the CDC propose to pay for the unfunded half of the
new Vacaville prison, as well
San Bernardino, San Diego,

a~

for erisons to be located in

Riverside, Los Angeles, and Kings

Backgrounds Only enough funds remain from the $~ million
bond issue to finance one-half of the new Vacaville prison.
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Other funding sources must be developed for the completion
of newVacaville, as well as for prison complexes approved
for location in the above cited counties.
10.

Given the acceleration of annual support costs for the California prison system, when does CDC project that these costs
will exceed

$~

billion a year?

Background: The CDC operating budget has ballooned from
million during 1975 to an estimated $581 million for
this fiscal year. At this rate, annual operating costs
will reach the $1 billion figure by 1987, if not before.

$!1i

Conclusion
It is believed that the 10 questions listed above reach the heart
of the most important issues that will confront Joint Committee
Members during the hearing of the CMF 2400 proposal on Thursday
5 January 1984.
For more detailed information in these and other areas of the new
Vacaville proposal, members are referred to the position paper entitled California State Prison at Vacaville - Analysis and Recommendations, which was issued on 22 December 198J.

79

STATE OF CALIFORNIA-YOUTH AND AOUL T CORRECTIONAL AGENCY

GEORGE OEUKMEJIAN. Go.,•rnor

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

P. 0. Box 714
Sacramento, CA

95803

January 3, 1984
The Honorable Senator Walter W. Stiern
Chairman, Joint Legislative Budget Committee
State Capitol, Room 5052
Sacramento, California 95814
Dear Senator Stiern:
This letter is in response to your letter of December 22, 1983
outlining major policy concerns on the proposed new prison at
Vacaville. As you indicated, we received additional questions from
the Legislative Analyst. Responses to his questions will be submitted
shortly.
1.

Housing Unit Modules
Question:

Have you abandoned your earlier design objective?

Response: Subsequent to the 1980 "Facilities Requirement Plan,"
the Department has adopted revised criteria. The New Facilities
Planning Guidelines, a copy of which is attached, states that
"housing unit design shall provide for dividing each 500-bed
population into at least four separate modules" (403.000). There
is no mention of smaller groups in these guidelines.
Additionally, AB 1841 (Chapter 957, 1983) stipulates that "each
facility .•• shall consist of at least two major living units, each
containing no more than 600 beds." Therefore, the Vacaville
housing units satisfy both th€ revised guidelines and legislation.
Question: If so, what are the advantages and disadvantages of
having larger living units?
Response:

Advantages are as follows:

a.

To adequately provide safety and security takes fewer staff
per inmate for larger units than for smaller units, and one
major objective has been to keep staff levels down. If the
units were subdivided and staff levels remained the same,
response time would increase, jeopardizing safety and
security.

b.

Initial construction costs per bed for larger units are
somewhat less than for smaller units. For these reasons, the
Department decided not to subdivide the units.

Disadvantages
a.

Large groups of inmates are more difficult to supervise.

h.

La
units decrease staff capability to communicate with and
identify inmates.

Question: If not, under what circumstances would the Department
construct the dividing walls and what is the estimated cost of the
walls?
sponse: If the open unit proves difficult to manage, the Department
will selectively install walls. The cost of each non-bearing wall is
approximately $9,000.
2.

11 Doors

estion: Has the State Fire Marshal provided written approval for
the installation of these ("in-swinging") doors?
Response: The office of the State Fire Marshall is preparing a letter
to the effect that in-swinging doors in prison housing units do not
violate State fire codes. However, subsequent to the submittal of
preliminary plans and in response to questions you raised earlier, the
rtment has re-examined this issue. While both in- and
out-swinging doors have their own advantages and disadvantages, the
Department has decided that swinging cell doors should be
out-swinging, if installed at all. The Department continues to prefer
sliding doors for all celled facilities if cost were not a major
concern. We now believe that manual sliding doors with electrically
o rated locks can be obtained within the cost of swinging doors and
can
delivered on schedule. We will forward our analysis of this
issue once it is finalized.
3.

Prison's Security System

estion: Please identify and provide the rationale for each
component of the prison complex security system.
s
se: The prison complex security system will consist of the
llowing components:

1

a.

The 1200-cell Level III perimeter security will consist of
two 16 foot high perimeter security fences, including two
of razor wire mounted on steel extension arms. These
two security fences will be clear and freestanding from any
buildings or structures, with a 20 foot space between them.

b.

1200-cell Level II perimeter security will consist of two
14 foot high perimeter security fences, including two feet of
razor wire mounted on steel extension arms. These two
security fences will be clear and freestanding from any
buildings or structures with a 20 foot space between them.

~1
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c.

The towers are approximately 700 feet apart on the Level III
side, and. up to 1400 feet apart on the Level II side. There
will be 15 perimeter towers, including 4 in the industries
area. These four towers will not be staffed when the
industries area is not operating.

d.

The buildings are at least 16 feet tall.

e.

A detection system in the no-man's land--to alert tower
officers to escaping inmates.

f.

A security lighting system that provides sufficient
visibility of the no-man's land and areas between and around
the fences when needed. Additional lights will be activated
by the detection system or by manual switches from the towers
when the alarms in no-man's land are sounded.

g.

A road outside the security perimeter surrounding the prison,
which can be used by search and escort staff if necessary.

h.

Vehicular parking outside of the perimeter security fences.

i.

One central tower to provide surveillance of interior yards.

j.

A central control room to coordinate internal and perimeter
security networks, and to monitor alarm systems.

k.

Sallyport gate systems at points of ingress and egress
through the security perimeter to prevent unauthorized
traffic.

1.

An institutional armory located outside the security
perimeter at the base of a gun tower.

m.

Warehouses outside of the security perimeter to minimize
non-State vehicle traffic through the security perimeter and
thus reduce the possibility of escapes.

n.

Although Vacaville does not have a personal alarm system in
the Scope of Work, the Department is currently developing a
pilot system to be used at San Quentin. It is the intention
of the Department to utilize this system if possible in all
existing and new prisons.

Question: How does the proposed security system for the Vacaville
rison complex compare with the systems to be installed at the new
api and Folsom Level IV facilities?
Response:
11 ows:
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The differences between Vacaville and Tehachapi are as

a.

Tehachapi and Folsom Prisons are designed from different
premises and security considerations are not directly
comparable.

b.

Tehachapi's towers are farther apart (1000') than those in
the Level III half of Vacaville. The Department believes
that a distance of 1000' between towers is not desirable in a
Level III or IV prison. If Tehachapi's perimeter security
system becomes compromised the Department will take steps to
correct the defects.

c.

The no-man's land at Tehachapi, at 200', is greater than
Vacaville's (50' to 140'). The difference at Vacaville is
due to site constraints.

d.

Vacaville's security perimeter "contracts" when the
industries area is not occupied (saving operational costs).

The differences between Vacaville and Folsom are as follows:
a.

The 1200 cell level II unit has towers approximately 1400'
apart, whereas Folsom has towers approximately 700' apart.

b.

Folsom's no-man's lands are approximately 100' wide, compared
with Vacaville's 50' to 140'. The differences are due to
site constraints.

Question: Has the Department adopted new standards with respect to
perimeter towers and other security measures at new prisons?
Response: The Department of Corrections new administration is
currently analyzing perimeter security needs relative to each
institution's site specific circumstances.
Question: Please submit the Department's standards for all security
measures for Level I, II, III, and IV prisons, and discuss the need
for each element of the various systems.
Response: As stated above, the Department of Corrections new
administration is currently analyzing perimeter security needs
relative to each institution's site specific circumstances. At such
time as the Department develops a revised set of perimeter security
standards, they will be forwarded for your review.
4.

Temporary Support Facilities

Question: Please provide a schedule which indicates when permanent
facilities will be available to replace the temporary ones, and
identify the anticipated costs and funding source for each temporary
and permanent facility.
Response: Temporary systems and facilities, and their rationales, are
as follows:
a.
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A new sewage transmission pipeline, connecting the new prison
with the City of Vacaville. Sewage Treatment Plant is
required to serve the 2400 inmate prison because the existing
City sewage transmission pipelines are at or near full
capacity. Due to the fast-track, phased approach taken to
expedite construction and activation of the new prison, a
portion of the new prison is scheduled to be occupied before
the Department and the City of Vacaville can bring the new
permanent sewage transmission line into service (12 to 18
months required). Hence, an interim sewage system is
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required to accommodate up to 2400 inmates on a temporary
basis. The cost of the proposed temporary sewage system will
range from $100,000 to $850,000, depending upon the
completion of the Ci
of Vacaville's new treatment plant.
b.

Temporary fencing will surround the first quad of housing to
facilitate security. The cost of this fencing is estimated
to be $36,700; however, it will be reused later in another
location.

c.

Three towers are needed during construction of the Level Ill
side.
se towers will be made of steel and will be
relocated to the Level II side of Vacaville once they are no
longer needed on the Level III side. The only additional
cost will be relocation expenses.

d.

To procure temporary boilers for domestic hot water and space
heating will cost $12,000 and will be revised later.

e.

Until the kitchen and dining halls are operational in July,
1984, food will be prepared at the existing Vacaville
prison's kitchen. It will be trucked to the new prison,
where inmates will eat in their dayrooms. With this
solution, there will be no added construction costs.

The funding source for all of the above is the New Prison Construction
Funds, as stipulated by SB 422 (1983).
5.

Architect's Contract and Project Schedule

Question: Please advise me as to how your department can authorize
the architect to proceed before a formal contract has been signed.
Response: All work has been in compliance with government codes,
including Section 1332.11(b). Following the intent of Senate Bill 422
(Chapter 958, Section 13, 1983), which states that the construction is
to "proceed as expeditiously as possible to relieve prison
overcrowding," the Department authorized the consultant, Giffels/Del
Campo and Maru, to proceed with the planning and preliminary design of
the new prison at Vacaville on October 19, 1983.
be specific, on October 18, 1983, the Department reached an
agreement with the consultant on fees, schedule, and scope of work.
The Department issued a Notice to Proceed authorizing the consultant
to begin the design of the Vacaville prison on October 19, 1983.
Subsequently, a contract for design of the new Vacaville prison was
developed by the Department based upon the agreement and submitted to
consultant for their signature.
ion: Under these circumstances (1) how is the architect paid,
2} how does the Department determine the amount to be paid, (3) who
authorizes payment and under what authority, and {4) what is the
source of funds?
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Response: To date, the consultant hired to design the new Vacaville
prison has not been paid for any services. Upon execution of the
contract, the architect will invoice for services providerl to that
date. The amount to be paid for each portion of the work is specified
in the contract. Payments will be funded from the project, as
provided in SB 422, and appropriated from the New Prison Construction
rund.
tion: Please indicate (1) how this schedule accommodates the
rPquiremcnts of the Government Code, and (2) your understanding of the
legislature's role and the State Public Works Board's role in
reviewing and approving these projects.
Response: Consistent with the law, the Department has directed the
consultant not to proceed with working drawings prior to Public Works
Board approval of the preliminary plans. The contract, which is
currently being processed, includes only the portion of the design
process through completion of preliminary plans. No work has been
authorized by the Department beyond development of preliminary plans
except for the working drawings for Site Grading and Weather
Protection bid package, and for precast. Preliminary plans for the
site grading and weather protection at Vacaville were approved by the
Public Works Board on December 10, 1983.
6.

STAFFING REQUIREMENTS:

Question: Please explain the justification for exceeding 4:1 inmate to
staff ratio of the Vacaville complex.
Response: As you point out, Chapter 958 requires the staffing ratio at San
Diego to be 4:1. At the time that measure was being considered by the
legislature, the Administration testified that the 4:1 ratio would be
difficult to meet especially in light of the fact that the programming
would be provided to all inmates.
The measure does not impose the 4:1 staffing ratio on the Vacaville
project. However, the Department of Corrections is committed to developing
the most staff-efficient design obtainable. Such a design must take into
account all mandates and goals placed on the project. For example, in
designing New Vacaville each 1200 inmate facility must be functionally
separate. This increases staffing in some areas. The requirement that 60
percent of the inmate population be involved in Prison Industry or
vocational education programs also has staffing implications.
Given our desire to fully employ 100 percent of the inmate population while
providing a safe and secure prison environment, we believe that the design
of the New Vacaville prison promotes a most efficient staffing ratio. If,
as we anticipate, we cannot further refine this prototype to meet the 4:1
requirement for San Diego, we will need to either develop a new design for
that facility or obtain relief from the Joint Legislative Committee on
Prison Construction and Operations.
Question: How is the proposed staffing pattern of Vacaville consistent with
the provision of Chapter 958, Statutes of 1983, which requires that each
1200 bed facility be functionally separate from any other existing or
planned prison facility?
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: We believe that the proposed staffing pattern is consistent with
that the new facility be functionally separate. In our
udgement, functionally separate means that each 1200 bed facility should
operate independently as to operations which directly affect inmates, i.e.
having the inmates cross into any other facility for programming or
visiting would not meet this requirement. On the other hand, having one
uperintendent for the overall Vacaville prison complex does not interfere
with the functional separateness of the facilities. Not only is this
interpretation more cost effective, it insures that tKe community has only
one contact for prison matters.

~~-r-e_q_u-est

In conclusion, we think that our interpretation of functionally separate is
consistent with the law and is cost effective.
ion: In order to more fully understand the staffing implications of
av lle design, please provide information on the number of
additional staff needed for this facility to operate as a functionally
rate prison. For example, what additional executive, administrative,
custody, food service, maintenance, and program positions would need to be
added if the complex were to be functionally separate?

-'-;-----,-;---

Response: As stated above, we believe that the proposed staffing pattern
provides functional separation. However, if the requirement was
interpreted to mean total separation, the following additional staff would
be
ired:
1.0
ntendent
1.12
Administrative Assistant (Lieutenant)
Executive Secretary
1.0
Correctional Administrator, Business
1.0
Services
1.0
Office Technician
Employee Relations Officer
1.0
Office Assistant II
1.0
Food Manager
1.0
Chief of Plant III
1.0
Trash Truck Driver
1.0
Pre-Release Coordinator
1.0
Correctional Adminstrator - Central
1.0
Operations
1.0
ice Technician
1.12
Correctional Sergeant - Range Master
14.24
Total
The above staff increase would represent a change in the staff ratio
from 3.6:1 to 3.52:1.
Question: Please provide the specific detailed information on your plan
to implement these programs at the new Vacaville prison.
Response: The Prison Industry Board•s annual report, which will be
furnished to the Joint Legislative Budget Committee prior to February
1, 1984, (as required by Chapter 1549, Statutes of 1982) will discuss
plans for significant changes to existing operations, and the planned
development of new enterprises. In addition, the report will detail an
increase in revenue for Fiscal Year 1982/83 over 1981/82 of 12.8
percent, from $30,219,600 to $34,095,000. Net income increased 15.3
percent to $2,169,500 as compared with $1,882,400 in 1981/82.
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The Prison Industry Authority (PIA) has developed, and continues to develop, market data which would support not only the enterprises at
Vacaville but also at other institutions, scheduled for construction.
The Prison Industry Authority is under new management, and is
aggressively developing these plans. As these plans are developed, we
will be able to provide more information.
Staff and consultant efforts are directed toward both the state and
local markets. Presently, two (2) outside consulting firms are working
with the PIA to clearly delineate the local market, which currently
accounts for only 4 to 5 percent of PIA sales.
The following information is provided, regarding specific enterprises
planned:
BAKERY
The Prison Industry Authority plans to establish a regional bakery at
New Vacaville to provide Northern California State institutions the
baked goods they are currently receiving on a six (6) month contract
from a variety of commercial sources. The contract for northern
institutions calls for 2,000,000 pounds semi-annually of white and
wheat bread, and hamburger and hot dog rolls, plus a variety of special
items by location, such as raisin bread, French bread, stub rusty
rolls, etc. All the items currently called for on the contract will be
provided by the Authority. The bread, hamburger and hot dog rolls
make up the bulk of the items to be baked and will be produced in the
early morning hours each day for immediate delivery. A limited daytime
shift will produce the specialty items as well as a variety of pastries
as ordered.
The six (6) month contract expires each March 30 and September 30. The
latest schedule for Vacaville shows program space to be completed
January 15, 1985. The implemenmtation plan for the bakery is to begin
installing the equipment immediately upon the space being made
available to the PIA. It is anticiapted that six (6) weeks will be
required for equipment installation. It is planned to have the bakery
operational by the first of March 1985. March will be a shakedown
period with the first customer to be served beginning April 1. A new
customer will be phased in each week with full operation eighteen (18)
weeks later.
LAUNDRY
The regional laundry planned for New Vacaville will provide service to
the institution as well as Napa and Sonoma State Hospitals. The
Departments of Developmental Services and Mental Health currently have
a study underway comparing the renovation of their existing laundries
to contracting with the PIA or commercial sources. Given the
advantages the Authority has in service operations, a proposal is being
prepared to have Napa and Sonoma State Hospital's laundry processed at
New Vacaville. This will provide 9.5 million pounds of laundry work
annually in addition to the 1.5 million pounds to be generated by New
Vacaville.
Equipment will begin to be installed immediately upon the space being
made available to the Authority. The existing CMF laundry will provide
service to the new institution while the laundry is coming on-line. It
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is expected that the new laundry wi l1 be operational by the middle of
March 1985. On April 1, the laundry will begin providing service to
New Vacaville. Napa will begin getting service the first of May and
Somona the first of June. The laundry will be fully operational at
that
i nt.
CERAMICS/MASONRY
This enterprise would produce products for a variety of customers. For
example, the California Department of Transportation purchases approximately 300,000 ceramic highway markers annually. This represents sales
of $90,000. The remainder of the products planned to be manufactured
in this enterprise would be a mixture of concrete brick and block and
glass block. Although it cannot be quantified at this time, the
Department of Correction's new prison construction program will
generate an additional need for concrete blocks. The Authority also
s begun discussions with the office of State Architect to have
concrete block, etc., removed from construction contracts to allow the
PIA to be a supplier.
It is anticipated that the New Vacaville Ceramic/Masonry enterprise
will be fully operational sixty (60) days after the space is made
available to the PIA.
PLASTIC BAG/FILM MANUFACTURING
State of California annually purchases $1.4 million in plastic bags
and plastic film. A major customer of trash bags would be the
Department of Transportation. Although specifics are not available,
the State of New York has recently implemented a plastic bag operation,
and that market need exceeded their expectations and equipment
capacity. This is not expected in California, since good market
information is available for sizing the enterprise.
It is anticipated that the New Vacaville Plastic Bag/Film enterprise
will be operational 45 days after the space is turned over to the PIA.
METAL FABRICATION
This enterprise will provide another badly needed metal working factory
to the Authority. There are currently State contracts issued to
commercial vendors for steel office desks, bookcases, file cabinets,
storage cabinets, shelving, and contemporary furniture that is not
being manufactured by the Authority. These items collectively amount
to $2.4 million annually. Capacity of this factory will also be used
to provide cell furniture for the new prisons to be occupied after July
1985.
It will take ten (10) weeks to implement this enterprise at New
Vacaville once the space is available.
Full operation is not
anticipated until ninety (90) days after the implementation date.
Using the latest schedule available to the Authority, full operation
would be July 1985.
VEHICLE REPAIR/REFURBISHING
This enterprise will provide an entire range of services to several
State agencies. It is expected the program will provide complete
restoration and refurbishing services. They would consist of
mechanical, electrical, glass, painting, and upholstery. Maintenance
1.17

and conversion work will also be provided. Discussions have been held
with the Department of Transportation on the refurbishment of their
heavy vehicles. The Department of Forestry has expressed an interest
in having their buses refurbished on a routine basis. The Department
of Motor Vehicles has 300 vehicles that are currently being serviced
commercially. Fleet Administration of General Services has indicated
an interest in having the Authority detail their vehicles prior to
auctioning them to the public.
The enterprise will take eight (8) weeks to implement at New Vacaville
from the date the space is available. It will take up to one (1) year
to train the inmates and reach a full operational level.
PARTS REBUILDING
The parts rebuilding enterprise will primarily work on vehicle parts
although motor rewinding for State agencies such as the CDC, Water Resources, Cal Trans, State hospitals and Forestry would produce a
significant amount of work. The vehicle parts to be rebuilt would
consist of alternators, generators, transmissions, water pumps,
carburetors and radiators. These parts would be available off the
shelf to agencies as well as used in the vehicle repair/refurbishing
program at New Vacaville.
This program would be implemented at New Vacaville six (6) weeks after
the space is available, with full operation planned sixty {60) days
after that.
FUNDING PLAN
The PIA intends to fund new operations from existing cash reserves and
from loans, under provisions of Chapter 1150, Statutes of 1983.
As you know, this legislation provides for twenty {20) year loans to be
granted by the Pooled Money Investment Board, upon appropriation by the
Legislature. The PIA will submit this request when the Legislature
re-convenes.
7b.

Question: *Please identify the basis for the number of inmates
assigned to all support activities, and the Department's basis for
concluding that assigning this many inmates to these activities would
provide meaningful full-time employment of inmates.
*How does the number of inmates assigned for maintenance
compare to the number at existing institutions?
Response:
The inmate work plan that was developed for New Vacaville
was based on the premise of a large Vocational Education Program,
interfaced with Prison Industries. This accounts for most assignments
at New Vacaville. Support Services are varied and complex. These
include such functions as clerks, janitors, clothing room workers,
groundskeepers, etc. Ninety-six (96) inmate housing porters does
appear excessive when observed in a collective manner. However, when
this number is dispersed over the entire facility, the numbers
breakdown to two (2) inmate porters for each 100-man unit, on second
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and third watches. This number is substantially below the number
assigned at other comparable level institutions. It is believed that
two (2) inmates per unit as currently proposed is minimal and may need
to be increased immediately upon initial occupation.
The maintenance shop ratio as developed is consistent with inmate to

staff ratios now in existence at other institutions. This ratio effectively staffs fourteen (14) specialty maintenance shops. These shops
are Plumbing, Paint, Groundskeeping, Carpentry, Electric, Electronics,
and Mechanical Maintenance/Utility, at each separate facility. We
intend to implement an aggressive preventive maintenance program in
order to insure that these facilities remain in an almost new
condition. This should fully occupy all inmates assigned to these
activities while assuring a cost-effective maintenance program. In
each of these ar€as the numbers assigned at New Vacaville are much
lower than at existing facilities.
The Department believes that the proposed inmate work/training plan
provides all inmates with productive full-time employment/assignments
consistent with the mandates of the Legislature.
If you need additional information please call me at (916) 445-7688.
look forward to working with you and members of your Committee.
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925 L STREET. SUITE 650
SACRAMENTO CALIFORNIA 95814
(916) 445-4656

January 12, 1984

Hon. Walter W. Stiern, Chairman
Joint Legislative Budget Committee
Room 5052, State Capitol
Sacramento, California 95814
Dear Senator Stiern:
In accordance with the prov1s1ons of Chapter 958, Statutes of 1983,
the Department of Corrections has submitted a series of proposals regarding
the proposed 1,200-bed Level III housing units at Vacaville, for review and
approval by the Legislature. These proposals are as follows:
o Preliminary design phase, Level III, housing
o Preliminary architectural program--housing units
o Draft facility program
o Preliminary estimates
o Outline specifications
o Project schedule update
o Staffing plan
o Inmate work/training plan
On January 5, 1984, the Joint Committee on Prison Construction and
Operations held a hearing to discuss these proposals. During the hearing,
the Director of the Department of Corrections stated that the department
was withdrawing the staffing plan and inmate work/training plan. The
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Director stated that these plans will be resubmitted at the time the
preliminary plans tor thP industries and other support facilities are
submitted to the Legislature. According to the department's project
schedule, these elements will be sent to the Legislature by January 16,
1984. The Joint Committee approved all of the remaining proposals
submitted by the depart~ent.
There remain, however, a number of issues which we believe either
department has not addressed adequately or may be of continuing concern
to the Legislature. The balance of this letter discusses these issues and
concerns and recommends that you communicate them to the director. It also
calls to your attention the department's disregard for the advice that you
(on behalf of the Budget Committee) and Senator Presley (on behalf of the
Joint Legislative Prison Committee) gave him regarding certain "early
order 11 items 1as t month.

Issues and Concerns
1. Housing Unit Modules--The housing units at Vacaville will house
100 inmates. There will be no physical separation to provide smaller
living groups. In the past, the Legislature has sought to provide for
small living groups in each larger housing unit. For example, at Tehachapi
and Folsom, housing units for 62 inmates are subdivided into smaller groups
of 20-22 inmates.
The Director indicates that walls can be installed at the new
Vacaville facility, at a cost of approximately $9,000 per wall, if the
units prove difficult to manage. We believe, however, that the
department's estimate of costs is too low. The department apparently has
not considered the costs associated with such items as fire exiting,
stairways, or showers that would be necessary, if at a later date, the
department decided to provide for physical separation. I believe it would
be appropriate for the director to reevaluate his decision to eliminate the
subdivisions. In any case, however we intend to raise this issue during
hearings on the 1984-85 Budget Bill.
2. Cell Doors. The Director indicates that in-swinging cell doors
will not be used and that the department prefers sliding doors for all cell
faci
es. The department believes that manual sliding doors with
electrically operated locks can be obtained within the amount previously
budgeted for swinging doors, and, that these doors can be delivered on
schedule. The department will forward its analysis of this issue, once the
analysis is completed.
3. Prison's Security Sfstem. The Director's letter identifies the
security measures to be instal ed at Vacaville, but does not provide the
rationale for several of the individual components as you requested. For
example, the Director states that perimeter towers will be spaced every 700
feet around the Level III facility and at 1,400-foot intervals around the
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L.evel II facility. No rationale has been provided for either configuration
or for the difference in spacing. Moreover, the Director indicates that he
is " ... currently analyzing perimeter security needs relative to each
institution's site specific circumstances. At such time as the department
develops a revised set of perimeter security standards, they will be
forwarded for your review".
To ensure that the perimeter security system is acceptablr to the
Legislature, the revised standards should be available for legislative
review prior to construction of the system at Vacaville. Consequently, we
recommend that you advise the Director not to award a contract for the
perimeter security of the Vacaville project until the proposed new
standards are submitted to the Le islature for review/a roval. This
shou d not de ay the project because construction of perimeter security can
start after construction on the housing units begins, and can be completed
in time for occupancy of the buildings, as planned by the department.
4. Temporary Suprort Facilities. For a period of at least two
years, the department wi 1 store raw sewage in open ponds. This sewage
will be piped through existing sewer lines to the city treatment plant in
the late evening/early morning hours when the plant presumably has spare
capacity to treat the sewage. The cost of the temporary system is
estimatPd to be $850,000 plus connection and treatment fees. The fee costs
have not been identified.
We are concerned that the storage of raw sewage in an open pond will
present a significant environmental probleM (a problem that was not
addressed explicitly in the environmental impact report for this project).
We recommend, therefore, that the department be requested to provide
details of the measures it plans to take in order to assure that the
storage of raw sewage will not cause environmental problems.
Secondly, until the kitchen/dining facilities are operational (the
partment expects these to be completed in July 1984), the food for the
new prison will be prepared at the existing Vacaville prison and
transported to the new facility. The department, however, has not
identified the equipment (such as trucks and food carts) needed for this
proposal, the cost of the equipment/operations, or the source of funds. We
recommend that the department be requested to submit this information to
the Legislature.
5. Architect's Contract and Project Schedule. The Director
indicutes that on October 18, 1983, an agreement was reached with the
consultant on fees, schedule and scope of V/ork. As of January 3, 1984, the
consultant had provided all services based on an unsigned agreement, but
had not been paid for any services. The Director claims that all work has
been undertaken in compliance with the Government Code. It is not clear to
us, however, where the Code allows the state to authorize work without a
signed agreement and then withhold payment for this work until a contract
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We believe the Director should have been more specific in his

The Director also states that the department has directed the
consultant not to proceed with working drawings prior to Public Works Board
approval of the preliminary plans. The department's schedule, however,
requires the start of working drawings prior to completion of legislative
review and Public Works Board approval of the preliminary plans. The
department has not submitted a new schedule to reflect the Director's plan.
Finally, the Director has not responded to your question as to his
understanding of the Legislature's role and the State Public Works Board's
e in reviewing and approving these projects.
6. Water Storage Tanks. The need for 1 million-to-1.5 million
gallon water storage tanks has not been demonstrated (cost: $1 million).
This portion of the project should be deferred until the need for
additional water storage has been substantiated.

7. Water Main Hook-up. The cost of the water main connecting the
prison to the city 1 s water system is to be shared by the state and the
city. The department's budget for the Vacaville project, however, includes
the total cost. The budget for the project, therefore, should be reduced
$413,000.
8. Fire Sprinklers. The plans for the housing units call for fire
sprinklers to be installed. Sprinklers, however, are not required bPcause
other fire safety measures, such as exiting and fire alarm detection
systems, are already incorporated in the design. These systems mitigate
the need for fire sprinklers. Deletion of the sprinklers results in a
savings of $600,000.
9. Administrative Segregation Unit. The design of the
administrative segregation unit has not been made available for legislative
review. Nor have the plans and cost estimates associated with outdoor
recreation facilities intended to serve the segregation unit been made
available for legislative review. This portion of the department's
proposal should not be approved by the Legislature until the preli~inary
plans and cost estimates are available.

10. Furnishings and Equipment. The furnishings/equipment and
associated costs for each housing units' barbershop, counseling office, and
"miscellaneous" have not been substantiated. These should not be approved
by the Legislature until the departr1ent has developed the necessary
supporting information. Consequently, the expenditure of $450,000 for
these items should be deferred, at this time.
11.

util Hies

On-Site Utilities. The department has not provided for on-site
(sewer, water, electricity) and connections to the housing
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units. Based on the department's preliminary plans and cost estimates, and
its latest project schedule, the initial buildings would be occupied before
these essential services are available. (DPpartment staff has informally
advised my staff that the plans will be changed to provide for installation
of these utilities before the buildings are completed.)
12. "Buy-in" Fee. The department has included $2,750,000 as a
''buy-in" fee for connection to the local sewer and water systems. The cost
of the "buy-in", however, is unknown at this time, and the department is
deferring this portion of its request. Consequently, the expenditure of
$2,750,000 for this fee should be deferred at this time.
13. Telephone Equipment. The department is unable to provide a
cost estimate or fund source for the telephone system equipment, cable, and
installation.
14. Utility Costs.
be reduced as follows:

The department's utility cost estimate should

o Delete duplication of the cost for asphalt concrete
associated with installation of the water main, for a
savings of $20,000.
o Reduce overbudgeted cost for 12-inch water line, for a
savings of $12,000.
o Delete underground vault for housing a water meter, for a
savings of $28,000.
o Delete future unspecified above-grade sewer station, for a
savings of $17,000.
o Reduce unjustified and excessive profit and contingency
funds, for a savings of $860,000.
15. Management Advertising. The department's project cost estimate
includes $157,000 for management advertising. The total cost for this
activity on the Tehachapi project was $6,000. Therefore, we recommend that
the amount for this portion of the Vacaville project be reduced to $2,000
to reflect a more reasonable cost, for a savings of $155,000.
Legislative Directive Disregarded
During our discussions with departmental staff regarding the
Vacaville project, we learned that the department has competitively bid the
following items for the entire 2,400-bed facility, even though construction
funds have not been appropriated for the 1,200 Level I/II portion of the
facility:
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0

Ce 11 doors (sliding and out-swinging)

0

Door frames

0

Security hardware

0

Plumbing fixtures

0

Fence sliding gate operators

The early purchase of cell doors, door frames, and security hardware
was formally submitted for legislative approval as part of the Director's
initial submittal on the new Vacaville prison (November 9, 1983). In your
November 30, 1983, response to the Director, you advised him not to proceed
with early order of these long lead items. In addition, on November 18,
1983, Senator Presley advised the Director not to proceed with these items.
The department has disregarded the advice, and has gone forward with its
initial plan to purchase the equipment.
A proposal to purchase the plumbing fixtures and fence sliding gate
operators has never been submitted to the Legislature.
It is our understanding that the department did not obtain the
approval of either the State Public Works Board or the Department of
Finance prior to proceeding on these items.
We believe the Director should inform the Legislature as to why he
chose to disregard the advice of two key legislative committees without
even notifying the Legislature of his intention to do so.
In summary, our analysis of the information provided by the
rtment indicates that the department needs to clarify (1) several
elements of the Vacaville proposal and (2) various aspects of departmental
procedures/policies. Further, the expenditure of $6,305,000 should not be
at this time. Specifically, $4,200,000 should be deferred until
for
associated items/related costs are substantiated and
,105,000 should be deleted to reflect cost savings.
A letter to the Director, summarizing these concerns and issues, is
cncl
The State Public Works has scheduled a January 17, 1984, meeting
at 1:00 p.m. to consider the director's proposal. Consequently, I
recommend that you sign and send the letter no later than the morning of
January 17.
Sincerely,

Will i am G. Hamm

Legislative Analyst
cc:

Members of the Joint Legislative Budget Committee
Members of the Joint Committee on Prison Construction
and Operations
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January 17, 1984

Mr. Daniel J. McCarthy, Director
Department of Corrections
630 K Street
Sacramento, California 95814
Dear Mr. McCarthy:
This is in response to your December 13, 1983, submittal and
subsequent correspondence regarding the new prison complex at Vacaville.
It is my understanding that at the hearing held on January 5, 1984,
by the Joint Committee on Prison Construction and Operations, you withdrew
the staffing and inmate work/training plans, stating that these plans would
be resubmitted with the preliminary plans for the industries and other
support facilities. The Legislative Analyst advises me that according to
your current project schedule, these elements will be submitted to the
Legislature by January 16, 1984.
There are a number of issues associated with the new prison complex
on which I believe you need to provide further clarification to the
Legislature. In addition, the Legislative Analyst advises me that based on
his review, $6,305,000 should be deleted from the cost estimates for the
project or deferred for the time being. A discussion of these issues
fallows:
1. Housing Unit Modules. In the past, the Legislature has
indicated a strong desire to provide small living groups in each larger
housing unit. For example, at Tehachapi and Folsom, housing units for 62
inmates are subdivided into smaller groups of 20-22 inmates.
The plans for the modules at Vacaville currently envision that 100
inmates will be housed without further subdivision. I urge you to
reconsider your decision to eliminate these subdivisions. The Legislative

98

WYMAN

Mr. Daniel J. McCarthy

January 17, 1984

-2-

lyst has advised me that he intends to raise this issue during hearings
on the 1984-85 Budget Bill.
2. Administrative Segregation. The preliminary plans and
associated costs for the administrative segregation unit and the related
tdoor recr~ation areas have not been presented to the Legislature.
ingly, this portion of the department's proposal should not proceed
until these plans and cost estimates have been made available for
l islative review. Please comply with the requirements set forth in
C pter 958, and submit the necessary information to the Legislature, as
soon as possible so that this portion of the project can proceed.
3. Early Order of Long Lead Items. By letter of November 30, 1983,
ised you not to proceed with the early order of long lead items.
tor Presley, chairman of the Joint Legislative Prison Committee, also
you not to proceed with these items in a letter dated November 18,
The
islative Analyst advises me, however, that according to your
staff, the department has begun the process of purchasing cell doors, door
fraraes, security hardware, plumbing fixtures, and operators for the fence
sliding gates for the Vacaville facility, including the 1,200-Level I/II
beds for which construction funds not been appropriated. The department's
action disregards the advice of two legislative committees and apparently
has been taken without State Public Works Board or De artment of Finance
ilpprova --a violation of current law.
I understand fully the need to expedite the prov1s1on of additional
son capacity in California. I also believe that the Legislature has an
important role to play with respect to how this capacity is provided since
rs must answer to their constituents regarding how state money is
. It is not clear, however, that your department shares my views.
ingly, I ask that you: (a) Provide a detailed explanation of why
Y'tment has chosen to disregard the advice which the department
t on the "early-order" items.
(b) Respond to the request in my
r 22 letter regarding your understanding of the Legislature's role
and the State Public Works Board's role in reviewing and approving plans
for prison projects.
;~~.~~...,...

4. Prison Security System.
components of the proposed security
ve not, however, provided the
ts as I had requested in my
rent configuration of security
ilities).

You have identified the individual
system at the new Vacaville complex.
rationale for several of these
December 22 letter, (for example, the
towers at the Level III and Level II

rther, you have stated that the Department of Corrections is
" ... analyzing
rirneter security needs relative to each institution's site
itic circumstances'', and that ~hen the department has developed a
revis
set of perimeter security standards, they will be forwarded to the
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Legislature. I believe it would be premature to proceed with construction
of the perimeter security system at Vacaville until you have submitted your
proposed perimeter security standards to the Legislature for its review.
5.

Temporary Support Facilities.

Sewer System. The Legislative Analyst advises me that for a period
of at least two years, the department plans to store raw sewage in an open
pond during the daytime, and pipe it through existing sewer lines to the
city treatment plant in the late evening/early morning hours when the plant
presumably has spare capacity to treat the sewage. Please provide specific
details of the measures that will be taken to assure that this storage of
raw sewage will not cause environmental problems.
Food Service. Until sometime in July 1984, the food for the new
prison will be prepared at the existing Vacaville prison and transported to
the new facility. Please identify the equipment needed for this proposal,
the cost of the equipment/operations, and the source of funds to cover
these costs.
6. On-site Utilities. According to written information supplied by
your department, the utility lines--water, sewer, electrical--will not be
connected to the housing units by the time the first buildings are
scheduled for initial occupancy. Based on your official project schedule
and cost estimates, these facilities are included in Bid Package V, which
is not scheduled for construction until mid-July and will not be completed
until mid-January 1985. Your staff has informally advised Mr. Beavers of
the Analyst's office that the plans will be changed to provide for
installation of these utilities before the buildings are completed. Please
clarify what the department's current plans are for assuring that these
essential utilities will be available by May 1984, when the first inmates
are scheduled to occupy the initial buildings.
7. Architectural Contract and Project Schedule. You have indicated
that on October 18, 1983, an agreement was reached with the consultant on
fees, schedule and scope of work. You have also indicated that as of
January 3, 1984, the consultant had provided all services based on an
unsigned agreement but had not been paid for any services. Although you
have indicated that all work has been in compliance with the Government
Code, it is not clear where the code allows a department to authorize work
without a signed agreement and then withhold payment for this work until a
contract is signed. Please identify which provisions of the code allow
this unusual procedure.
In addition, although you have stated that the consultant has been
directed not to proceed with working drawings for any project components
prior to Public Works Board approval of preliminary plans, your most-recent
project schedule requires that working drawings be started prior to either
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completion of legislative review or Public Works Board approval of
liminary plans. Please clarify this discrepancy. If the current
project schedule is in error, please submit a corrected schedule.
8. Revised Cost Estimate. The Legislative Analyst advises me that
estimate submitted to the Legislature for the Vacaville project should
reduced by $6,305,000, by eliminating or deferring the items listed
low. The cost identified for each item includes the associated fees,
contingency, etc.

o Defer the construction of water storage tanks until the need for
additional storage is substantiated ($1 million)
o Reduce the cost of the water ~ain to account for the City of
Vacaville participation, for a savings of $413,000
o Delete fire sprinklers from housing units because other fire
safety measures make this equipment unnecessary, for a savings of
$600,000
o Defer the purchase of furnishings/equipment and related
expenditures for each housing unit's barbershop, counseling
office, and "miscellaneous .. until the department has developed
the necessary justifications ($450,000).
o Defer the amount specified for "buy-in" fee for connection to the
local sewer and water systems ($2,750,000). The department has
agreed to defer this item.
o Reduce the utility cost by deleting duplication of the costs for
asphalt concrete associated with installation of the water main
($20,000), reduce overbudgeted costs for 12-inch water line
($12,000), delete underground vault for housing a water meter
{$28,000), delete future unspecified above grade sewer station
($17,000), delete unjustified and excessive profit and
contingency amount ($860,000), for a total savings of $937,000.
o Reduce amount for management advertising to $2,000 to reflect a
more reasonable cost, for savings of $155,000. The total cost
for this activity in connection with the Tehachapi project was
$6,000.
Finally, please list the equipment, identify the estimated cost and
specify the fund source for (1) the group II moveable equipment for the
housing units, (2) the telephone system equipment, cable, and installation.
Sincerely,
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January 1?, 1984
Tor

Daniel McCarthy, Director
California Department of Corrections

Froma

Senator Robert Presley

Re•

Staffing of New Vacaville and Other Prisons

Dear Dan,
I wanted ~o let you know my concerns about the staffing of the
new Vacaville, as well as that at other new prisons which will
be designed using the Vacaville prototype.
You and I know that the best designed and programmed prison or
jail will not function any better than the staff who man that
prison or jail. It is, therefore, of great importance that new
Vacaville be staffed at every level with the best personnel
available. In this way, the new institution complex can serve
as a model for emulation by all other new prisons which will be
patterned after it.
During our recent Joint Committee Hearing, there was considerable
discussion about the need for CDC planners to come as close as
possible to a desired 4 to 1 inmate to staff ratio. Although a
4 to 1 ratio may not be possible, given the design of the Vacaville
Complex, CDC planners should make certain that there is absolutely
no "fat" in the staffing pattern.
To achieve the desired ratio it may also be necessary to move
outside the status quo concept of fixed post positions. For
example, perhaps the duties of staff can be made more flexible,
so that they move about the institution in accordance with the
daily movement of the inmate population. There may be other
innovative ways in which to make better use of staff during each
eight hour work period.

the key element here is to insure tte quality of staff and
not the
sheer ~umbers. During the recent series of hearings
conducted at various prisons by the Joint Committee, for instance,
it seemed to me, and to others, that excessive numbers of staff
were idly cl~stered in many institution areas.
The preceding is not intended as criticism of your own efforts
to restore effective management to the state prison systemo On
the contrary, I and other Committee members are impressed with
the new leadership and sense of purpose you are bringing to the
partment of Corrections. And I want to assure you of my
inued support as you continue your efforts to reorganize and
the state prison system.
Sincerely,

Senator
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January 17, 1984
To:

Senator Robert Presley, Committee Chairman
Assemblyman Byron Sher, Committee Vice Chairman

Fromr

L. H. Fudge, Committee Consultant

Rea

Scheduled Public Works Board Hearing on New Vacaville
Prison Proposals This Afternoon
URGENT RESPONSE NEEDED

Attached are two important memos on the approval status of the
recommendations for the new Vacaville prison complex.
Mr. William G. Hamm, Legislative Analyst, has written an extremely
negative critique memo to Senator Walter W. Stiern, Chairman Joint
Legislative Budget Committee on the Vacaville project. I, in turn,
have written an analysis and recommendations memo which I largely
based upon Mr. Hamm's critique.
Since the Public Works Board is scheduled to meet at laOOP.M.
today to consider the new Vacaville proposals, it is of great importance that you and other members of the Joint Committee on
Prison Construction and Operations review the attached material
and base decisions upon it.
It is my own recommendation
on new Vacaville be delayed
decision making information
understanding is reached as
be held accountable for the

that the Public Works Board hearing
(perhaps 2 or 3 weeks) until adequate
is provided by the CDC and a clear
to who has the responsibility and will
end results of the planning proposals.
Submitted with urgency,

C;!2~3~Lewis H. Fudge, Committee Consultant
Attachments-2
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January 18, 1984
To:

Members, Joint Committee on Prison
Construction and Operations

From:

Senator Robert Presley, Chairman

Res

Public Works Board Hearing on New Vacaville Prison Complex

Attached for your information are two memos on the approval status
and recommendations for the new Vacaville Prison complex. On the
basis of these memos and personal contacts, the Department of
Corrections (CDC) agreed, at the January 17, 1984 Public Works
Board hearing, to defer decisions on the majority of the issues
and concerns raised in the attached memos.
CDC officials also agreed with the suggestion of Mr. Tony Anthony,
Director General Services, who chaired the hearing, to have
specific information upon which to make proper decisions when the
Public Works Boards meets again to consider the proposals for new
Vacaville Prison. This meeting is scheduled for Tuesday January Jl,
1984.
This two week delay is satisfactory to all concerned. The completion of the project will not be delayed, and CDC planners will
be able to provide required information to the Legislative Analyst
prior to the January Jlst meeting of the Public Works Board.
The meno on top is one written by the Legislative Analyst questioning certain aspects of the Vacaville plans. The memo on the bottom
was prepared by Prisons Committee Staff Consultant Lew Fudge,
essentially agreeing with most of Mr. Harnrn's points.
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January 17, 1984
To:

Senator Robert Presley, Committee Chairman
Assemblyman Byron Sher, Committee Vice Chairman

From:

Lewis Fudge, Committee Consultant

Rea

New Vacaville Prison Planning Approval Status and Recommendations

Introduction
At laOOP.M. today the State Public Works Board is scheduled to
consider plans submitted by the California Department of Corrections (CDC) for the new Vacaville prison complex.
On January 5, 1984 the Joint Committee on Prison Construction
and Operations held a hearing on the Vacaville project and gave
conditional approval to the design and program concepts, as well
as to the "fast track" methods of construction. At this hearing
Willian G. Hamm, Legislative Analyst, outlined many problems
related to "fast track" construction and to the inadequacy of
the design and program information submitted to date by CDC
planners and their Outside Contract Managers. In response to
Mr Hamm•s presentation, CDC Director Daniel McCarthy assured
Joint Committee members that the new Vacaville project would
meet cost, program and completion dates in accordance with CDC
projections. Mr. McCarthy also took direct, personal responsibility both for keeping the "fast track" construction project on
course and for providing satisfactory evaluation material to the
Joint Committee and to the Legislative Analyst.
On January 12, 1984 Mr. Hamm sent a memo to Senator Walter Wo
Stiern, Chairman Joint Legislative Budget Committee, which described serious flaws and ommissions in the new Vacaville prison
proposals. In effect, Mr. Hamm recommended that the proposals
not be approved by the Public Works Board until the issues and
concerns raised in the memo had been adequately addressed by the
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s Outside Contract Managers.
memo is attached.

A copy of Mr. Hamm's

is in substantial agreement with Mr. Hamm•s position
recomme
that approval not be granted by the Public
the new Vacaville prison proposals at its l:OOP.M.
Tuesday January 17Th. Instead, decisions on the prod be delayed until after CDC planners have provided
tory answers to the issues and concerns raised by Mr. Hamm.
icular importance here are the items listed in the section

New Vacaville Prison Issues and Concerns
~

Housing Unit Modules
s clarification on the nead for partitioning
housing units to provide sub-units,as in the
Security Prototype.
r is op2osed to any such partitioning. It is not needed
III prison and would drive up staffing costs and needa
ily operations •

• Hamm proposes that the cost and suitability differences
n swinging and sliding doors in the housing units be provided.
concurs with this proposal.

recommends against approval of the Perimeter Security
the number of towers and distance standards are subLegislature for review/approval.
so concurs with this important recommendation.

•
requests that the CDC provide details on how it plans
to store raw sewage in temporary ponds for at least two years without cau
environmental problems. He also requests that infortted on equipment and methods of feeding new Vacaville
soners until the
tchen/dining facilities become operational.
ter concurs with these requests.
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5. Architects Contract and Project Schedule
Legal issues are raised as to unsigned agreements, non payment of services, and start of working drawings prior to completion of legislative review and Public Works Board approval.
Certainly these issues should be clarified for all parties concerned.

6.

Water Storage, Main Hookup and Fire Sprinklers

The need for water storage and fire sprinklers are questioned,
as are funding costs for connecting the prison with the City of
Vacaville's water system.
The writer agrees with the findings and recommendations.

7.

Administration Segregation Unit

Contrary to opinions of the Legislative Analyst and CDC Planners,
the writer sees no need for a Segregation Unit at new Vacaville,
which should become a model for emulation by other new prisons to
be designed from its prototype.
If prisoners do not comply with institution work/training and other
requirements, they should be transferred to existing, status quo
prisons.
8.

Telephone Eguipment 1 Utility Cos.:ts.J._ll.nd

JVI~nagement

Advertizing

The Legislative Analyst's findings and recommendations in these
areas appear valid, and the writer concurs with them, especially
in the findings of excessive costs and profits.
If the CDC is to meet its $jl thousand per cell or bed cost projections and restore its lost credibility, every funded dollar must
be wisely spent.
9.

Legislative Directives Disregarded

Mr. Hamm's memo states that, despite legislative directives not
to purchase long lead items until after the requests for them have
been reviewed and approved by the Legislative Analyst, the CDC has
already competitively bid these items for the entire 2,400 Bed
facility. And this was done even though construction funds have
not yet been appropriated for the 1,200 Level I/II portion of the
facility.
Mr. Hamm recommends that the CDC Director " ••• should inform the
Legislature as to why he chose to disregard the advice of two key
legislative committees without even notifying the Legislature of
his intention to do so."
The writer fully concurs with both findings and recommendation in
this significant area.

commiserates with CDC need to provide
ison beds with which to alleviate its
sis. There is no question that every
to provide additional housing at
time. However, the Legislature must also
that CDC plans for new prisons are cost effective
in adequately built and programmed institutions.
CDC is to be authorized to "fast track" design
sons, a high level of trust must exist between
ture. Assurance must be proveded that CDC will
es
ials as cost projections, completion dates,
program needs and mandated staffing ratios. To date,
record" for meeting these important essentials has been
•
CDC has made remarkable improvements in the reorganization
ctiveness of its joint planning effort with the outside
firm of Rosser/Kitchell, needed credibility with the
has not yet been established. Moreover, if the planning
new Vacaville prove unsatisfactory, reoent credibility
be destroyed.
r to prevent such an occurance, it is essential that CDC
responsibility for meeting cost and completion projections
ding work/training programs and staffing ratios. As a
preventing further misunderstandings and doubts about the
of
tailed planning proposals for new Vacaville prison,
responsibility for final results, the following recomions are made.
Public Works Board Hearing for new Vacaville
until after CDC planners have provided needed
to the Legislature and the Legislative
requested in the attached memo from Mr. Hamm.
rscored in Mr. Hamm's memo, the CDC Director
that the department was withdrawing the staffing
inmate work/training plan and that the plans
re
d
the time the preliminary plans
s and other support facilities were subAccording to the CDC project schedule, these
nts were to be sent to the Legislature by January 16,
As of this writing, however, these plans have still
n forwarded. Yet the Public Works Board is scheduled
upon the new Vacaville plans this afternoon.
In cone sion here, a two or three week delay will make
at difference in the provision of sorely needed
no
son
ds. At this point, project completion dates

for new Vacaville and other planned prisons appear quite
unrealistic. And given present overcrowding and continued
population growth, there simply is DQ way that the CDC
can "build itself" out of its daily worsening bed crisis.
2.

That responsibility and accountability for meeting cost,
completion, program and staffing projections, as well as
for providing satisfactory structures and utilities, be
fixed squarely upon the Youth and Adult Corrections
Agency {YACA), the CDC, and the outside contract management firm of Rosser/Kitchell.
If trust by the Legislature in the "fast track" design
and construction of new prisons is to be warranted and
preserved, then accountability for fulfilling the prison
plans must be accepted by officials of the above named
organizations. Without such acceptance the Legislature
and the Legislative Analyst will be "buying pigs in a
poke" and then may be held accountable for cost overruns,
completion delays, and program inadequacies.

In final summary, it is strongly recommended that the Public Works
Board hearing of the CDC planning proposals for the new Vacaville
prison be rescheduled from this afternoon to a later date. This
will enable CDC planners the time to satisfactorily respond to
the issues and concerns raised by Mr. Hamm in his attached memo.
Only in this way can the Legislature gain assurance that CDC plans
for new Vacaville are satisfactory and that YACA and CDC officials
and the Rosser/Kitchell firm are accountable and will take full
responsibility for the planning proposals.
Sincerely,

CE'JV-/ 8~
Lewis H. Fudge, Committee Consultant
Attachment-!
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January 12, 1984

Hon. Walter W. Stiern, Chairman
Joint Legislative Budget Committee
Room 5052, State Capitol
Sacramento, California 95814
Dear Senator Stiern:
In accordance with the prov1s1ons of Chapter 958, Statutes of 1983,
the Department of Corrections has submitted a series of proposals regarding
the proposed 1,200-bed Level III housing units at Vacaville, for review and
approval by the Legislature. These proposals are as follows:
o Preliminary design phase, Level III, housing
o Preliminary architectural program--housing units
o Draft facility program
o Preliminary estimates
o Outline specifications
o Project schedule update
o Staffing plan
o Inmate work/training plan
On January 5, 1984, the Joint Committee on Prison Construction and
Operations held a hearing to discuss these proposals. During the hearing,
the Director of the Department of Corrections stated that the department
was withdrawing the staffing plan and inmate work/training plan. The
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e pl n
ll
resubrnittrd at the tirnr th<'
i us ries and other support facilities are
islature. According to the department 1 S project
elements will be sent to the Legislature by January 16,
Joint Committee approved all of the remaining proposals
the departr.1ent.
to

re remain, however, a number of issues which we believe either
rtment has not addressed adequately or may be of continuing concern
islature. The balance of this letter discusses these issues and
s and recommends that you communicate them to the director. It also
to
r attention the department's disregard for the advice that you
l of the Budget Committee) and Senator Presley (on behalf of the
gislative Prison Committee) gave him regarding certain "early
items last month.

Issues

Concerns
ules--The housing units at Vacaville will house
no physical separation to provide smaller
st, the Legislature has sought to provide for
in each larger housing unit. For example, at Tehachapi
units for 62 inmates are subdividec into smaller groups

---=~~~~~-----

..
indicates that walls can be installed at the new
le cility, at a cost of approximately $9,000 per wall, if the
s prove difficult to manage. We believe, however, that the
rtment 1 S estimate of costs is too low. The department apparently has
the costs associated with such ite~s as fire exiting,
rs that would be necessary, if at a later date, the
to provide for physical separation. I believe it would
for the director to reevaluate his decision to eliminate the
In any case, however we intend to raise this issue during
1984-85 Budget Bill.
The Director indicates that in-swinging cell doors
at the department prefers sliding doors for all cell
t
eves
t manual sliding doors with
ocks can be obtained within the amount previously
i
doors, and, that these doors can be delivered on
rtment will forward its analysis of this issue, once the
Prison S Security Ststem. The Director's letter identifies the
measures to be instal ed at Vacaville, but does not provide the
ona e for several of the individual components as you requested. For
e,
Director states that perimeter towers will be spaced every 700
around the Level III facility and at 1,400-foot intervals around the
3.

1

113

Han. Walter W. Stiern

January 12, 1984

-3-

L.evel II facility. No rationale has been provided for either configuration
or for the difference in spacing. Moreover, the Director indicates that he
is ~ ... currently analyzing perimeter security needs relative to each
institution's site specific circumstances. At such time as the department
develops a revised set of perimeter security standards, they will be
forwarded for your review".
To ensure that the perimeter security system is acceptable to the
Legislature, the revised standards should be available for legislative
review prior to construction of the system at Vacaville. Consequently, we
recommend that you advise the Director not to award a contract for the
perimeter security of the Vacaville project until the proposed new
standards are submitted to the Legislature for review/approval. This
should not delay the project because construction of perimeter security can
start after construction on the housing units begins, and can be completed
in time for occupancy of the buildings, as planned by the department.
4. Temporary Sup~ort Facilities. For a period of at least two
years, the department wi;l store raw sewage in open ponds. This sewage
will be piped through existing sewer lines to the city treatment plant in
the late evening/early morning hours when the plant presumably has spare
capacity to treat the sewage. The cost of the temporary system is
estimatPd to be $850,000 plus connection and treatment fees. The fee costs
have not been identified.
We are concerned that the storage of raw sewage in an open pond will
present a significant environmental problem (a problem that was not
addressed explicitly in the environmental impact report for this project).
We recommend, therefore, that the department be requested to provide
details of the measures it plans to take in order to assure that the
storage of raw sewage will not cause environmental problems.
Secondly, until the kitchen/dining facilities are operational (the
department expects these to be completed in July 1984), the food for the
new prison will be prepared at the existing Vacaville prison and
transported to the new facility. The department, however, has not
identified the equipment (such as trucks and food carts) needed for this
proposal, the cost of the equipment/operations, or the source of funds. We
recommend that the department be requested to submit this information to
the Legislature.
5. Architect 1 S Contract and Project Schedule. The Director
indicates that on October 18, 1983, an agreement was reached with the
consultant on fees, schedule and scope of \'Jork. As of January 3, 1984, the
consultant had provided all services based on an unsigned agreement, but
had not been paid for any services. The Director claims that all work has
been undertaken in compliance with the Government Code. It is not clear to
us, however, where the Code allows the state to authorize work without a
signed agreement and then withhold payment for this work until a contract
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ieve the Director should have been more specific in his

Director also states that the department has directed the
not to proceed with working drawings prior to Public Works Board
preliminary plans. The department's schedule, however,
s rt of working drawings prior to completion of legislative
Public Works Board approval of the preliminary plans. The
s not submitted a new schedule to reflect the Director's plan.
Finally, the Director has not responded to your question as to his
ing of the Legislature's role and the State Public Works Board's
and approving these projects.

ta

6. Water Storage Tanks. The need for 1 million-to-1.5 million
water storage tanks has not been demonstrated (cost: $1 millior.).
ion
the project should be deferred until the need for
onal water storage has been substantiated.
7. Water Main Hook-up. The cost of the water main connecting the
son to the city's water system is to be shared by the state and the
department's budget for the Vacaville project, however, includes
total cost. The budget for the project, therefore, should be reduced
13,000.

8.

Fire Sprinklers. The plans for the housing units call for fire
to be installed. Sprinklers, however, are not required bPcause
r fire safety measures, such as exiting and fire alarm detection
, are already incorporated in the design. These systems mitigate
for fire sprinklers. Deletion of the sprinklers results in a
$600,000.

9. Administrative Segregation Unit. The design of the
strative segregation unit has not been made available for legislative
r
ve the plans and cost estimates associated with outdoor
ilities intended to serve the segregation unit been ~ade
e
r legislative review. This portion of the depart~ent's
should not be approved by the Legislature until the preli~inary
cost estimates are available.
1
Furnishings and Equipment. The furnishings/equipment and
sociated costs for each housing units• barbershop, counseling office, and
1aneous have not been substantiated. These should not be approved
islature until the departr1ent has developed the necessary
information. Consequently, the expenditure of $450,000 for
should be deferred, at this time.
11

l.

tilities

On-Site Utilities. The department has not provided for on-site
(sewer, water, electricity) and connections to the housing
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units. Based on the department's preliminary plans and cost estimates, and
its latest project schedule, the initial buildings would be occupied before
these essential services are available. (Department staff has informally
advised my staff that the plans will be changed to provide for installation
of these utilities before the buildings are completed.)
12. "Buy-in'' Fee. The department has included $2,750,000 as a
buy-in" fee for connection to the local sewer and water systems. The cost
of the "buy-in", however, is unknown at this time, and the department is
deferring this portion of its request. Consequently, the expenditure of
$2,750,000 for this fee should be deferred at this time.
11

13. Telephone Equipment. The department is unable to provide a
cost estimate or fund source for the telephone system equipment, cable, and
installation.
14. Utility Costs.
be reduced as follows:

The department's utility cost estimate should

o Delete duplication of the cost for asphalt concrete
associated with installation of the water main, for a
savings of $20,000.
o Reduce overbudgeted cost for 12-inch water line, for a
savings of $12,000.
o Delete underground vault for housing a water meter, for a
savings of $28,000.
o Delete future unspecified above-grade sewer station, for a
savings of $17,000.
o Reduce unjustified and excessive profit and contingency
funds, for a savings of $860,000.
15. Management Advertising. The department's project cost estimate
includes $157,000 for management advertising. The total cost for this
activity on the Tehachapi project was $6,000. Therefore, we recommend that
the amount for this portion of the Vacaville project be reduced to $2,000
to reflect a more reasonable cost, for a savings of $155,000.
Legislative Directive Disregarded
During our discussions with departmental staff regarding the
Vacaville project, we learned that the department has competitively bid the
following items for the entire 2,400-bed facility, even though construction
funds have not been appropriated for the 1,200 Level I/II portion of the
facility:
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frames
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hardware
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fixtures
te operators
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cell doors, door frames, and security hardware
islative approval as part of the Director's
tta on
new
ville prison (November 9, 1983). In your
, 1983, response to the Director, you advised him not to proceed
long lead items. In addition, on November 18,
Presl
advised the Director not to proceed with these items.
has dis
rded the advice, and has gone forward with its
i

the plumbing fixtures and fence sliding gate
tted to the Legislature.
the department did not obtain the
ic Works Board or the Department of
these items.
We believe the Director should inform the Legislature as to why he
chose to disregard the advice of two key legislative committees without
even notifying the Legislature of his intention to do so.
ion provided by the
needs to clarify (1) several
and (2) various aspects of departmental
expenditure of $6,305,000 should not be
fica
, $4,200,000 should be deferred until
items/re ated costs are substantiated and
cost savings.
, summa zing
se concerns and issues, is
s s scheduled a January 17, 1984, meeting
director 1 s proposal. Consequently, I
s
letter no later than the morning of
Sincerely,

vJill iam G. Hamm

Legislative Analyst
on

Budget Committee
ison Construction
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March 13, 1984

Hon. Walter W. Stiern, Chairman
Joint Legislative Budget Committee
Room 5052, State Capitol
Sacramento, California 95814
Dear Senator Stiern:
On February 10, 1984, the Department of Corrections submitted
preliminary plans and specifications for bid package IliA, California State
Prison at Vacaville, for legislative review pursuant to Chapter 958,
Statutes of 1983. These plans and specifications were received by the
Joint Legislative Budget Committee on February 13.
This bid package consists of the on-site utility distribution
terns for the 1,200-bed medium-security (Level III) portion of the
proposed new 2,400-bed prison. The department's submittal indicates that
this portion of work is estimated to cost $9,705,250 with the total cost of
the 2,400-bed complex estimated to be $122,500,000. The department has
requested the State Public Works Board to consider this item at a special
meeting on March 19, 1984.
By letter of February 27, 1984, I asked the department to answer
several questions regarding the bid package IliA submittal. This
additional information was provided on March 8 and March 12. Until this
information was made available to us, we had no basis for reviewing the
department's proposal and providing an analysis of the proposal to the
committee. While the 30-day review period has expired, the Youth and
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has assured me that any comments on the project
considered as meeting the prescribed review peri
recei
no later than March 15.
have three primary concerns with the Vacaville project.
mated Cost of the Project Has Increased By Up To $11.6 Million

L

department's February 10, 1984, submittal indicated that the
estimated total cost for the 2,400-bed Vacaville complex was $122,500,000,
iously indicated to the Leqislature and the Public Works Board when
r bid
on
is project were submitted for review/approval. The
itional i
rmation provided by the department, however, indicates that
estima
total project cost is now $129,226,625, or $6,726,625
.2
rcent) more than the previous estimate. Attachment A compares the
current cost estimate and the estimate approved by the board.
on
is information, the project may require a significant
in o r to fund future work needed to complete the complex.
have several additional concerns with the department's latest estimate
project costs:
o The estimate does not include any amount for contingencies during
construction. The detailed bid package estimates, however,
include $4,832,400 for contingencies. Thus, the current estimate
is actually $11,559,025 (9.4 percent) more than the previous
estimate.
o The amount budgeted for utility connection fees to be paid to the
City of Vacaville for water and sewer hook-up has been increased
from
,7 ,
to $7,966,425 without any justification having
ided to the Legislature.
o

current estimate cannot be compared to appropriations for
i ic
of the project. For example, while
,000
been appropriated for the Level III portion of
ect, the estimated cost of this work cannot be determined
information provided by the department.

of changes have been made since the project was last
o An
reviewed
the Legislature, but the cost of these changes has
not
identified. For example, the television security
systems a perimeter detection systems have been modified .
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2.

The Proposed Heating/Ventilation System May Not Be Cost-Effective

Gid package IIA, which covered under-building utilities and
foundations, included hot water piping from a central heating plant. Bid
packaqe JIIA, however, provides for installation of natural gas pipinf and
an LPG back-up system to service individual heating units in each bui ding.
The department indicates that the central plant has been abandoned because
the decentralized system will cost $1.7 million less in initial
construction.
We requested a copy of the department's cost/benefit analysis for
the alternative heating/ventilation systems. The department indicated that
no analysis is available and that a life-cycle cost analysis, or
cogeneration analysis, has not been prepared "in order to maintain a
fast-track schedule." Thus, it appears that the department has changed the
scope of work without adequate evaluation of the total operational/energy
cost implications of the change.
We acknowledge that a decentralized system may cost less to
construct than a centralized system. The state's experience to date,
however, indicates that a central plant system is more cost-efficient than
a decentralized system over the life of a facility. Consequently, most
existing prisons, and other state institutions such as state hospitals and
universities, operate a central plant. Moreover, a central plant can
accommodate cogeneration equipment, which can reduce energy costs and at
the same time provide emergency power capabilities. Even the Department of
Corrections appears to have acknowledged this by proposing to retrofit
central plants at several existing prisons in order to provide cogeneration
capability.
Consequently, we believe the department's current plan for a
decentralized heating system is shortsighted and should not be approved.
3. The Department is Proceeding With the Project Even Though Portions of
It Are Still Being Developed or Revised
The department's response to our request for additional information
indicates that several aspects of the project are not yet defined, and that
additional study is needed. For example, the following items--proposed for
Public Works Board approval--are still under study:
0

Planned exterior lighting levels, including suyplemental
perimete~_lighting.
The department cannot exp ain how it arrived
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at the exterior lighting levels used as the basis for designing
the new prison.
o Emergency power capacity and fuel system. The current proposal
includes four separate generators to be fueled by natural gas or
possibly fuel oil. These generators will not be needed if a
cogeneration system is installed.
o Closed-circuit television system. The department is reevaluating
the cost of installing antennas, in lieu of the planned
underground cable distribution system.
o Separate trenching for underground utilities. The department's
proposal for placing sewer, water, gas and other distribution
systems underground in separate trenches is not consistent with
current code. The department is evaluating a less costly
solution.
Planned Completion Date is Now July 31, 1984, Instead of May 15, 1984
The current schedule shows that the planned completion date for the
first 600-bed housing complex is July 31, 1984. The original completion
date for this complex was May 15, 1984. Moreover, this occupancy date may
be realistic because buildings to house essential services such as food
service, will not be completed until several months later.
Finally, we note that the department prepared an explanation of how
it intended to complete working drawings within three days after board

approval of the preliminary plans as indicated on the original schedule.
The new schedule accompanying this justification indicates that the working
ngs will be completed three weeks after the board action.
Recoll'll1endation
Our analysis of the department's proposal indicates that the
partment needs to provide additional information to the Legislature in
order for the Legislature to be assured of the advantages of the current
proposal. At the same time, we do not believe the Legislature should be
put in the position of causing any delay in the occupancy of the new
facilities. Accordingly, we recommend that you advise the Director that
you have no objection to the project pt·oceeding on the condition that,
prior to Public Works Board approval of this bid package, the department
provide to the Legislature:
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1. Its plan for reducing the cost of individual components of the
project in order to bring the overall cost within the budget level, or
alternatively secure legislative approval of any additional funds needed to
complete the project, and
2. An analysis which shows the long-term economic advantages of the
proposed decentralized heating system, relative to a central plant with
cogenrration capabilities.
I'm not sure that the department would be able to satisfy these
conditions by the scheduled meeting of the Public Works Board on March 19.
If it cannot do so, the department probably will accuse the Joint
Legislative Budget Committee of slowing down the construction project. The
Committee's response to such charges should be:
o The department should not expect the Legislature to provide a
blank check--to cover the cost of either building the project or
operating it.
If you concur, a suggested letter to the Director is enclosed.
Sincerely,

Wi 11 i am G. Hamm
Legislative Analyst
cc:

Members of the Joint Legislative Budget Committee
Members of the Joint Committee on Prison Construction
and Operations

Enclosure
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Legislative Analyst
March 13, 1984

California State Prison at Vacaville
Cost Estimate Comparison
Category
1.

2.

Total Construction including
off-site utility fees
Contingency
Subtotal

Feb. 16' 1984 March 8, 1984
DOF Certification CDC Estimate

Difference

$99,640,000

$112,457 '725

+$12,817 ,725

5,821,600
$105,461,600

$112,457 '725

-5,821,600
+$6,996,125

3.

Fees, A&E, Surveys, etc.

6,075,624

6,796,900

+721 ,276

4.

Contract Management/Insp.

3,258,318

2,472,000

-786,318

5.

Equipment

7,500,000

7,500,000

6.

Miscellaneous (landscaping)
Total

204,458
$122,500,000

-0$129,226,625

-204,458
+$6,726,625

7.

Probable Construction
Contingency
Grand Total

$122,500,000

+$4,832,400a
$134,059,025

+$4,832,400
+$11,559,025

a.

Not in CDC summary estimates, but this amount is included in the budget for
individual bid packages.
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